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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Huang Changbi

Mr. Liu Baohe

Mr. Zhang Zhenming

Mr. Chan Shi Yung (resigned on 1 May 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fu Dali (appointed on 28 July 2011)
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing
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Ms. Zhang Wei (resigned on 28 July 2011)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ho Ka Yiu Simon (appointed on 1 May 2011)
Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe (resigned on 1 May 2011)

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
http://www.cnenergy.com.hk

REGISTERED OFFICE
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Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Units 5611-12, 56th Floor
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Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT

TR EE RS

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the results of China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the

year ended 31 December 2011.
BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded a
turnover of the sale of food and beverages business of
approximately HK$73,876,000 (2010: HK$85,376,000),
representing a decrease of 13% as compared to corresponding
period in 2010. The significant decline in turnover was because the
Group disposed a Chinese restaurant in September 2010 and only

one Chinese restaurant operating in the Group.

During the year, the Group has successfully completed the
acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of the Totalbuild Investments Group
(Hong Kong) Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Totalbuild
Investments Group”) which has entered into petroleum contract
with China National Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC”) for the
drilling, exploration, exploitation and production of oil and/or
natural gas within the specified site located in North Kashi Block,
Tarim Basin, Xinjiang, People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The
term of the Petroleum Contract is for a term of 30 years
commencing 1 June 2009. The results of the Group during the
period have included operating costs relating to the petroleum
operation from the date of completion of Acquisition to 31
December 2011. The results of operations in exploration and
production segment and costs incurred for exploration and
evaluation assets acquisition and exploration activities are shown

as below:
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT

TTHARETRS

(@)

Results of operations in exploration and production

segment

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net sales to customers BPFIHER — —
Other income HaugA 343 —
Operating expenses FE Y (32,768) —
Depreciation e (965) —

Result of operations before income tax B TS5 L A4S L ¥ 45
expenses (33,390) —

Costs incurred for exploration and evaluation assets
acquisition and exploration activities

RUBHRERFEEERMEEE T
BE A

(b)

2011 2010

—E——fF —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Acquisition costs U B Bl AR 559,607 —
Exploration cost incurred FNESE 2 IR

during the year 38,747 —

598,354 —

Since the Group is still negotiating with CNPC regarding the
pricing and percentage of revenue sharing on the natural gas and
the operations to those gas wells. No turnover was recognized in

relation to the exploration and production of natural gas.

During the year, the sales of food and beverages business
recorded a loss which was mainly due to the loss incurred by
operating a Chinese restaurant. The Chinese restaurant operating
in Hong Kong has been facing the high rent costs and high
inflation, together with the persistence increase in raw materials

and labour costs pose challenges to the Group.

HRAEENERRAREZERIF ZEEZE
REBEDMEBED LR E A REEER - H
BRARBEMEEZ BAEEREER -
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X —EmESSHEHERAREREE  EREM
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT

TTHARETRS

On 28 December 2011, the Company announced that the Group
entered into an agreement with Speedy Fortune Limited to dispose
Ocean Grace Investment Limited ("OGIL”), which is principally
engaged in operating a restaurant in Hong Kong. Having
considered the uncertain market environment in the Chinese
restaurant in Hong Kong, the Board considers that the disposal
would provide a good opportunity to exit the Chinese restaurant
market in Hong Kong and the Group can reallocate its resource to

the other investment opportunities.

After completion of the disposal, the Group will continue to operate
the sales of food and beverages business. The Company expects
that it can still generate stable revenue in the foreseeable future.
Details of information were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated on 28 December 2011.

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGY

Following the completion of the Acquisition, the management
believes that the Acquisition will help making the stronger company

and creating value for our shareholders.
APPRECIATION

Looking forward, we will continue our proven strategy of fostering
opportunity for sustainable growth with the aim of enhancing return
for our shareholder. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to a team of
devoted staff for their outstanding service and to our shareholders

for your continued support.
Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREAH R D

OPERATING RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded a
turnover of the sale of food and beverages business of
approximately HK$73,876,000 (2010: HK$85,376,000),
representing a decrease of 13% as compared to corresponding
period in 2010. The significant decline in turnover was because the
Group disposed a Chinese restaurant in September 2010 and only

one Chinese restaurant operating in the Group.

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately HK$122,836,000 compared to a
loss of approximately HK$50,987,000 to the corresponding period
in 2010. The loss was mainly attributable to the impairment loss of
HK$66,310,000 to the deposits, other receivables and loan
receivables. Loss per share attributable to the owners of the
Company was 1.80 HK cents (2010: 1.20 HK cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group has successfully completed the
Acquisition of the Totalbuild Investments Group which has entered
into petroleum contract with CNPC for the drilling, exploration,
exploitation and production of oil and/or natural gas within the
specified site located in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, Xinjiang,
PRC. The term of the Petroleum Contract is for a term of 30 years
commencing 1 June 2009. The results of the Group during the
period have included operating costs relating to the petroleum
operation from the date of completion of Acquisition to 31
December 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RN

As at 31 December 2011, the acquired oil/gas field has
approximately estimated contingent resources of 47.4 million
barrels oil and 12,086 million m® natural gas (based on Group’s
share of participated interests). These contingent resources are
quantities of oil and gas estimated, to be potentially recoverable
from known accumulations by application of development projects,
but which are not currently considered to be commercially
recoverable due to one or more contingencies. The risks
associated with these contingent resources included, (i) no
definitive gas sales agreement nor accurate information on likely
future sales prices; (ii) the future overall development program is
still to be developed and approved and; (iii) the field is situated in
a remote location. The Group will continue to negotiate with CNPC
in relation to the sales agreement and develop the overall

development program in coming years.

Since the Group is still negotiating with CNPC regarding the
pricing and percentage of revenue sharing on the natural gas and
the operations to those gas wells. No turnover was recognized in
relation to the exploration and production of natural gas, and no
development or production activities were carried out during the

year.

During the year, the sales of food and beverages business
recorded a loss which was mainly due to the loss incurred by
operating a Chinese restaurant. The Chinese restaurant operating
in Hong Kong has been facing the high rent costs and high
inflation, together with the persistence increase in raw materials

and labour costs pose challenges to the Group.

On 28 December 2011, the Company announced that the Group
entered into an agreement with Speedy Fortune Limited to dispose
OGIL, which is principally engaged in operating a restaurant in
Hong Kong. Having considered the uncertain market environment
in the Chinese restaurant in Hong Kong, the Board considers that
the disposal would provide a good opportunity to exit the Chinese
restaurant market in Hong Kong and the Group can reallocate its

resource to the other investment opportunities.

8 | ANNUAL REPORT 2011 44

RZT——F+-A=+—8 BlEHIBA
B AGETREEIR - 25 47,400,000 18 A8
% 12,086 B & K RAR(RIBEAREE D
DEBERTE) ZFRBERAMF AMEXR
ARE = AJEENTEEE - MARERE R
EEMALRES - AMEATEN—ERA E 23R
BE - MTARRAETEEMNFRR - ARSI
ARERZEBEIE  ((REEENREHEHZ
S BRARRATAEEERERER (i) BERESE
T B A £ 5T KA © K (i) h R B AR
R o AN B 0 SR A A A B PR O R B R
EHEER - WHIEEEREE -

HAAEENERRARIZERI ZEIEZE
BERED GBS RS BEAhEmER - F
N B|BRARBDREREE 2 BRERBEERER
PR ETERIEERD

FR HERMLAHEHBREER TEHR
REPEBEL ZBR - LNBEANPTEE
XS SESRARBEE  ERRY
MEETHARFE L KAREENKS -

RZTE——F+_AZ+/N\B  KRAEM K
HEEAERARGUHBELSEFRE - Z
AFEREREBLLEEE - KEREBHA
B TRETRE  EFERR/HESHEIEM
—EARFEEREEREPEET S RAEEA]
BHAEHEEREH MR E S



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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After completion of the disposal, the Group will continue to operate
the sales of food and beverages business. The Company expects
that it can still generate stable revenue in the foreseeable future.
Details of information were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated on 28 December 2011.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no outstanding interest-
bearing borrowings (2010: Nil). The cash and cash equivalents of
the Group were approximately HK$378,011,000 (2010:
HK$4,674,000).

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s current ratio (current assets
to current liabilities) was approximately 1.0 (2010: 2.9). The ratio of

total liabilities to total assets of the Group was 14.9% (2010: 5.4%).

During the year, convertible notes of the principal amount of
HK$599,330,000 were converted at an exercise price of HK$0.168
resulted in the issuance of additional 3,567,440,000 ordinary

shares of the Company.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company has outstanding
convertible notes in the principal amount of HK$1,958,670,000,
including principal amount of HK$1,279,000,000 held under
escrow arrangement, due in 2041 not carrying any interest with
right to convert the convertible notes into ordinary shares of the
Company. A maximum number of 11,658,750,000 shares may be
allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attached

to the convertible notes in full.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREAH R D

Charges of Assets

None of the assets of the Group were pledged as security for any
banking facilities and borrowings as at 31 December 2011 and
2010.

Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and the
exposure in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in
the HK dollar and Renminbi exchange rates. Exchange rate
fluctuations and market trends have always been the concern of
the Group. The policy of the Group for its operating entities
operates in their corresponding local currencies to minimize
currency risks. The Group, after reviewing its exposure for the time
being, did not enter into any derivative contracts aimed at
minimizing exchange rate risks during the year. However,
management will monitor foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure if

necessary.

Capital Commitments
The Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$259,350,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010: nil).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2011 and 2010.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a total workforce of 154
(2010: 127). The Group remunerates its employees based on their
work performance, working experiences, professional

qualifications and the prevailing market practice.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Major Transaction

On 28 December 2011, Hon Po International Limited (“HPIL”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the agreement with
the Speedy Fortune Limited (the “Purchaser”), a third party
independent of the Company and its connected persons, pursuant
to which HPIL has conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to acquire OGIT, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and wholly owned by HPIL, sale shares and the
OGIT sale loan at a total consideration of approximately
HK$5,900,000. Details of information were set out in the

Company’s announcement dated on 28 December 2011.

As at the date of this report, none of the conditions has been
fulfilled and the disposal is subject to the approval of the

shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company.
PROSPECTS

Natural Resource Industries
The Group has been seeking investment opportunities from time to

time to broaden the Group’s sources of income.

On 3 January 2011, the Company completed the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of the Totalbuild Investments Group and
issued Tranche | convertible notes of principal amount
HK$2,558,000,000, the convertible notes may issue upto
15,226,190,476 ordinary shares of the Company upon conversion.

The convertible notes will be matured in the year 2041.

The success of the acquisition enables the Group to diversify its
business into natural resources business. The management of the
Group maintains its long-term confidence on the natural gas and
oil industries and the acquisition will broaden the revenue stream

of the Group in the future.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

SRV ER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Guogiang, aged 54, joined the Company as an
executive director in December 2009 and elected as the chief
executive officer on 29 December 2009. He graduated from his
study for Physics at Qufu Normal University. He has near 31 years
of working experience in exploration and exploitation of Petroleum
industry. He acted as senior engineer in Sinopec Shengli Qilfield
Company (the “Shengli Oilfield”) and awarded the Top-notch
talent from China Petroleum & Chemical Shengli Oilfield. He was
an executive director of Energy International Investments Holdings
Limited (stock code: 353) from 23 December 2009 to 9 November
2010.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, aged 45, joined the Group in February 2004
and promoted to executive director and chief financial officer in
October 2005 and resigned as chief financial officer on 1 May
2011. He has over 16 years’ experiences in accounting and
auditing fields including over 11 years’ accounting and auditing
experience in other public listed companies prior to joining the
Group in February 2004. Mr. Chui is also an executive director of
ZMAY Holdings Limited (stock code: 8085) and an independent
non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(stock code: 8148), both of which are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Liu Baohe, aged 65, joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2009. He has been a Professor grade Senior
Engineer in the Petroleum Industry for nearly 41 years. He
graduated from his studies for Exploration and Exploitation of
Petroleum Field at the Beijing Petroleum Institute (renamed as
China University of Petroleum) in 1970. After that, he acted as
Senior Engineer, Supervisor of Geological Research Center and
President at the Shengli Petroleum Administrative Bureau of CNPC
until 1993. In 1994, Mr. Liu was appointed as Deputy President of
the Exploration and Exploitation Department of CNPC, and was
promoted as President from 1996 to 1999. From January 2000 to
August 2001, Mr. Liu acted as Deputy General Manager of the
Exploration and Exploitation Division of CNPC. From September
2001 to November 2005, he acted as Deputy Chief Executive
Officer of CNPC and took charge of Petroleum and Gas Exploration
and Exploitation operations. Afterwards, Mr. Liu acted as Deputy
President of the Biomass Energy Team of CNPC, supervising the
new energy development, while he presided as the Chief Executive
Officer of China Petroleum Exploration Development Company
Limited, supervising the International Exploration and Exploitation

and Natural Gas Pipelines Operation, till his retirement in late 2008.

Mr. Zhang Zhenming, aged 65, joined the Company as an
executive director in June 2010. He has led as the President of the
Energy Commission of the National Development and Reform
Commission in PRC since 2006. Mr. Zhang also had led as the
Deputy Chairman of China National Petroleum Corporation
Research Institute of Economics and Technology and had

conducted energy research for more than 11 years.
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Mr. Huang Changbi, aged 55, joined the Company as an
executive director in June 2010. He graduated from China
University of Petroleum and held bachelor degree in resources
prospecting and is a senior engineer. He also graduated from
Shengli Qilfield Staff University specializing in Petroleum Geology
and Shandong Radio & Television University with major in English
language. From 1983 to 2009, he had engaged in oilfield
development dynamic, comprehensive research, preparation of
various development proposals and development technology
management in the Geological Survey of Shengli Oil Production
Plant and Dongxin Oil Production Plant of Shengli Qilfield. During
this period, he had been the Executive General Manager and
member of Party Committee of Second Mines and First Mines in
Dongxin Qil Production Plant of Shengli Qilfield, Instructor and
Deputy Director of Shengli Qilfield Dongxin Geological Survey
Institute; and was recognized as a Senior Engineer and expert in

plant oil and gas development.
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing, aged 43, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in July 2010. He holds a
bachelor degree in science with major in accounting of Bemidii
State University, USA and is a member of both American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 16 years of experience
in auditing and accounting field. Mr. Fu was an independent non-
executive director of China Golden Development Holdings Limited
(stock code: 162) which is listed on the Main Board of Stock
Exchange from 8 January 2007 to 27 September 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Fu Dali, aged 52, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director in July 2011. He graduated from Enterprise
Management Department of Human Finance and Economics
Institute in 1990. Mr. Fu acted as deputy director of China Ministry
of Foreign Affairs Ministry of Petroleum, manager of Sinopec
Hainan Project Division, manager of Hayden Communications
International Project Division, U.S.A., manager of Tianjin Xinhai
Engineering Company Limited and chief executive officer of Fa
Guo Lu Jing Zhong Guo*. Mr. Fu has rich experience in the
enterprise administrative and management, and proficient in
petroleum engineering drilling technology and oil and gas

development technology.

# (Mandarin Pinyin only)

Mr. Sun Xiaoli, aged 56, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in July 2011. He is a lawyer in the PRC. He
holds a master degree in law from China University of Political
Science and Law and a bachelor degree in law from East China
University of Political Science and Law (formerly known as “Z£ & i
JEEBT ). From 1983 to 1985, Mr. Sun acted as the teacher in Fujian
Provincial Public Security College. From 1988 to 1995, he has
acted as the research associate in Institute of the Ministry of
Justice. From 1996 to January 1997, he has acted as the associate
professor in the Faculty of Law in the China University of Political
Science and Law. Mr. Sun has been the lawyer in the Navigator
Law Office since 1997. He has extensive experience in teaching

and dealing with the laws’ affairs in the PRC.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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OVERVIEW

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate
governance standard and procedures. The Board recognizes the
importance of and benefit from good corporate governance
practices. We believe that improvement in corporate governance
not only assists the Company in effective supervision and control
on its business operation, but also attracts investment from
international institutional investors, thereby creating and enhancing

shareholder value.

The Company’s has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, except for Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code which states that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer (the “CEQ”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual and the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and CEO should clearly
established and set out in writing. Since the position of chairman is
vacated, the Board is currently identifying the suitable candidate to
fill the vacancy and will ensure that the chairman will be appointed
as soon as possible. Pursuant to the Code Provision E.1.2 of the
CG Code, the chairman of the Board should attend the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”). However, the chairman is vacated.
Mr. Zhao Guogiang as the CEO will attend the AGM and will be
available to answer questions at the AGM. The Company carries
out periodically reviews its corporate governance practice to

ensure that these continue to meet the requirement of CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Practice

a)

With respect to the compliance with paragraph A of the
CG Code, the Company has carried out the following

corporate governance practices:

The Company has held 19 Board meetings in the year
of 2011. Directors have been consulted to advice the
agenda of the Board meeting. Sufficient notice of the
Board meeting has been given to the directors. Minutes
of the Board and the Board Committees are recorded
in sufficient details and kept by the company secretary
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any director. Directors were supplied with
adequate and relevant information in a timely manner to
enable them forming decision in the relevant meetings.
The composition of the Board is shown on page 21 of
this report. At every AGM, one-third of the directors for
the time being or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding
one-third shall retire from office. A director appointed
by the Board fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
shall hold office until the next general meeting or the
next AGM. Every director is aware that he/she should
give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company. Details of the directors’ attendance in
different meetings are set out on page 21. Agreed
procedures are in place providing to the member of the
Board and/or committee to seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses to

assist them to discharge their duties.

For other details of the responsibilities of directors,

please refer to the section “Board of directors”.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph B of the
CG Code,

remuneration committee with specific written terms of

the Company has established a

reference, details of which are set out in page 24 to 26

of this Annual Report.
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With respect to the compliance with paragraph C of the
CG Code, the Company has carried out the following
corporate governance practices:

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as will enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of financial and other
information put before the Board for approval. The
Company has announced the result of 2011 on 27
March 2012. A statement by the auditor about its
reporting responsibilities is included in Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 45 to 47 of this Annual Report.
The details of the internal controls of the Company and
the audit committee are set out under the section
“Internal Control and Internal Audit” below.

Internal Control and Internal Audit

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in
maintaining sound and effective internal control system
for the Group to safeguard investments of the
Shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.
The system of internal controls aims to help achieving
the Group’s business objectives, safeguarding assets
and maintaining proper accounting records for
provision of reliable financial information. However, the
design of the system is to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement in
the financial statements or loss of assets and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure when
business objectives are being sought. Management
has conducted regular reviews during the year on the
effectiveness of the internal control system covering all
material controls in area of financial, operational and
compliance controls, various functions for risks
management as well as physical and information
systems security. The chief finance officer (the “CFQ”")
has reported to the audit committee from time to time
during the year, in conjunction with key findings
identified by the external auditors, findings and actions
or measures taken in addressing those internal controls.
The audit committee in turn reports any material issues
to the Board. The Board, through the audit committee,
also sets targets for and reviews plan and progress on
continuous improvement work of the Company’s
internal control system with the CFO on a periodic
basis.
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With respect to the compliance with paragraph D of the
CG Code, the Company has carried out the following

corporate governance practices:

When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, it has
given clear directions as to the powers of management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstance where
management shall report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Company. The Company has set up three committees,

for details please refer to the relevant sections below.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph E of the
CG Code, the Chairman of the Company and the
Chairman of the audit committee and the Chairman of
the remuneration committee attend in the AGM to
answer questions raised up in the meeting. However,
the Chairman is vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang as the
CEO will attend the AGM and will be available to
answer questions at the AGM. The procedures for
demanding a poll by the Shareholders were
incorporated in every circular issued during the

financial year ended 31 December 2011.

On review the CG Code, the Company has complied with all

the Code Provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing

Rules throughout the financial year ended 31 December

2011, except with deviation from the Code Provision A4.1

details of which are explained below.

Pursuant to A4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election while all directors should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every

three years.
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For the year under review, all independent non-
executive directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company’s Articles of Association.

Directors’ Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted the full set of Model Code set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of the
conduct for securities transactions by directors (the “Model
Code”). The prohibitions on securities dealing and disclosure
requirements in the Model Code apply to specified
individuals including the Group’s senior management and
also persons who are privy to price sensitive information of
the Group. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the
Board confirms that all directors of the Company have
complied with the Model Code regarding directors’ securities
transactions during the year and up to the date of publication

of this Annual Report.

Board of Directors

(a) Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Board
comprises a total of eight members including five
executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors. Members of the Board have
different professional and relevant industry experiences
and background so as to bring in valuable contributions
and advices for the development of the Group’s
business. One-third of the Board is independent non-
executive directors and one of them is a qualified

accountant.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of their
independence to the Group. The Group considered
that all independent non-executive directors meets the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines. The names of the directors
and their respective biographies are set out on pages
12 to 15 of this Annual Report.

The Board meets periodically with the management to
discuss the Group’s strategies development and to
review the business operation. The Board also monitors
and controls financial performance in pursuit of the
Group’s strategic objectives. The names of the directors
during the financial year and their individual attendance

of are set out below:

(b) ARREEESE IR TESIE

E2BIMERAAREBEL 2 FEE

RE - AEERRDEBEIIENTE

E/AE ETRANEIG 2B LIE
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(c) EFSTHEEEESE ImAK
B2 R R EGEE - EF
ENMERLEEASEEERREE
ARRZMERIR - AP RFEZE
R REERN 2R B EENT

Attendance/Numbers of
Meetings entitle to attend

HERE EREEEEREA
Audit Remuneration
Name Board Committee Committee
®E g EREES yMzas
Executive Directors: HITESE :
Mr. Zhao Guogiang HEE 9% S Ak (7T AR E,)

(Chief Executive Officer) 18/19 N/A T35 A N/ATiE A
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau ByERELE 16/19 N/A T35 A N/ATiE A
Mr. Huang Changbi HEEE%E 8/19 N/A N iE A N/A i A
Mr. Liu Baohe 21EMEE 6/19 N/A i N/A i
Mr. Zhang Zhenming SRIRAA S 6/19 N/AAE R N/A &
Mr. Chan Shi Yung PR (RZE——F

(resigned on 1 May 2011) AHA—HEHE) 4/4 N/A“~E A N/A i
Independent Non-executive BIMITESE

Directors:

Mr. Fu Dali (appointed on MNARFGE(R=ZF——F

28 July 2011) +HAZ+NAZEE) 5/15 2/2 1/1
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing BEELAE 7/19 2/2 1/1
Mr. Sun Xiaoli (appointed on FEELE(RZF——F

1 July 2011) +H—HZFE) 5/15 2/2 1/1
Ms. Zhang Wei (resigned on RELZT(R=ZFE——F

28 July 2011) + A=+ NHEFHE) 0/6 N/AAE R N/A i
Mr. Yin Guohui (resigned on BB (R ——4F

1 July 2011) + A —HEHE) 0/5 N/A 36 F N/A i
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The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development,
and determine the objectives, strategies and policies of

the Group.

The major issues which were brought before the Board

for their decisions during the year include:

i. Proposals related to potential acquisition,
investments, or any significant capital

expenditures; and

ii. Formulation of operational strategies and review
of its financial performance and results and the

internal control system.

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
the Company maintains sound and effective internal
controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investments

and the Company’s assets.

Three Board committees, namely, the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, have been established to oversee particular

aspect of the Group’s affairs.

The Board also has delegated the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group’s businesses
to management of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board to the management include the
preparation of financial statements for Board approval
before publishing, execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of
adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant

statutory requirements and rules and regulations.
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4. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(a)

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the positions of
the Chairman of the Board is vacated. Mr. Zhao
Guogiang was elected as the CEO on 29 December
2009.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance
with good corporate governance practice. With the
support of the senior management, the Chairman is
also responsible for ensuring that the directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at

Board meeting.

The CEO focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day
management and operations. He is also responsible for
assisting the Chairman of the Board in developing
strategic plans and formulating the company practices
and procedures, business objectives, and risk

assessment for the Board’s approval.

5. Non-executive Directors

All non-executive directors, including independent non-

executive directors, of the Company, have not been

appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by

rotation and eligible for re-election in the AGM in accordance

with the articles of association of the Company.
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Remuneration of Directors

(a)

The Company has established a remuneration

committee since 23 September 2005 with written terms

of reference and revised on 27 March 2012 as

disclosed on the Company’s websites. The primary

duties of the remuneration committee include the

following:

(i)

(iii)

to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on

such remuneration;

to have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payment, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors. The
Committee should consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the group
and desirability of performance-based

remuneration;

to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to

time;
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to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their
office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive

for the Company;

to review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
directors for misconduct to ensure that such
arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any
compensation payment is otherwise reasonable

and appropriate; and

to ensure that no director or any of his associates

is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the members of

remuneration committee comprised Mr. Fu Wing Kwok,

Ewing who act as Chairman of the remuneration

committee, Mr. Fu Dali and Mr. Sun Xiaoli, all of them

are independent non-executive directors of the

Company.

The number of remuneration committee meeting held

during the year and record of individual attendance of

members, on a named basis, at meetings held during

was set out in section headed “Corporate Governance

Report” on page 21 of this Annual Report.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group

was set up by the remuneration committee on the basis

of their merit, qualification and competence.
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(e) The emolument of the directors of the Company are
determined by the remuneration committee, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual

performance and comparable market statistics.

()  The Group’s share option scheme as described on
page 129 to 131 of this Annual Report is adopted as

the Group’s long-term incentive scheme.

Nomination of Directors

The Company has established a nomination committee on 27
March 2012 with written terms of reference as disclosed on
the Company’s websites. The primary duties of the

nomination committee include the following:

1. Toreview the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to implement the

Company’s corporate strategy;

2. To identify individuals suitably qualified to become the
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships, especially to
ensure that the independent non-executive Directors

comprise at least one-third of the Board,;

3.  To assess the independence of independent non-

executive Directors; and

4. To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the

chairman of the Board and the chief executive.
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Up to the date of this Annual Report, the members of
nomination committee comprised Mr. Fu Wing Kwok,
Ewing who act as Chairman of the nomination
committee, Mr. Fu Dali and Mr. Sun Xiaoli, all of them
are independent non-executive directors of the

Company.

Auditors’ remuneration

For the financial year, BDO Limited, the auditor of the

Company, received approximately HK$1,000,000 in respect

of audit service provided to the Group. The auditors’

remuneration has been duly approved by the audit

committee and there was no disagreement between the

Board and the audit committee on the selection and

appointment of auditor.

(a)

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company was established
since 30 January 2002 with written terms of reference
and revised on 27 March 2012 as disclosed on the
Company’s websites comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Fu Wing Kwok,
Ewing (Chairman of the audit committee), Mr. Fu Dali
and Mr. Sun Xiaoli. Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing is certified
public accountants for many years. In the opinion of the
Board, the members of the audit committee have
sufficient financial management expertise to discharge

their duties.

The number of audit committee meetings held during
the year and record of individual attendance of
members, on a named basis, at meetings held was set
out in section headed “Corporate Governance

Report”.
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(c) The audit committee is delegated by the Board to
assess matters related to the financial statements of
accounts and to provide recommendations and

advices, including but not limited to the followings:

(i)  to consider, and to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the audit fee and other terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of

resignation or dismissal of the external auditor;

(i) to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standard;

(i) to discuss with the external auditors before the
audit commences, the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations and ensure co-
ordination where more than one audit firm is

involved;

(iv) to develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-
audit services. For this purpose, external auditor
shall include any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed
third party having knowledge of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The
Committee should report to the Board, identifying
any matters in respect of which it considers that
action or improvement needed and making

recommendations as to the steps to be taken;
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(v)

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial

statements and annual report and accounts, half-

year report and, if prepared for publication,

quarterly reports, and to review significant

financial reporting judgments contained in them;

In reviewing, the Company’s annual report and

accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for

publication, quarterly reports before submission

to the Board, the Committee should focus

particularly on:

(vi)

(vii)

any changes in accounting policies and

practice;

major judgmental areas;

significant adjustments resulting from the

audit;

the going concern assumption and any

qualifications;

compliance with accounting standards;

compliance with the Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial

reporting;

the fairness and reasonableness of any
connected transaction and the impact of
such transaction on the profitability of the

Group;

ERARBANPBHRRLFE
BERERE  ¥FERERCE
BTZ)FERENTEML
WERMBR R BREMEA B
BHENEAER

RESHERNESFERIAQHA
MEERSEMRE - ¥FER
ER(ERTE)FTERS &
Frpl & T 5 =R INAZER] -

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(@R REE S
ERE

W RERFEERIRE
AZBHBRNERHE

FESKENRERE
AREE

RTEF LW RAIRE
80 9 5 A B T
EMER

EANEXSRIBE
AFARRKZ DA
EERTHT 2

CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED BB EZzRaRAR | 29



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o

30

EEaWE

(viii) whether all relevant items have been
adequately disclosed in the Group’s
financial statements and whether the
disclosures give a fair view of the Group’s

financial conditions;

(ix) any significant or unusual items that are, or
may need to be, reflected in such reports

and accounts; and
(x)  the cashflow position of the Group.

and to provide advice and comments thereon to
the Board;

(vii) inregard to (vi) above:

(i)  members of the Committee must liaise with
the Board and senior management. The
Committee must meet, at least twice a year,

with the Company’s auditors; and

(i)  the Committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and must give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the
Company’s accountant, compliance officer

or auditors.

(viii) to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim and final audits, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of

management where necessary);
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

to discuss with the management the system of
internal control and ensure the management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system and to review the Company’s
statement on internal control systems (where one
is included in the annual report) prior to

endorsement by the Board;

to consider any findings of major investigations of
internal control matters as delegated by the Board
or on its own initiative and management’s

response;

(where an internal audit function exists) to review
the internal audit programme, ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company and to
review monitor, the effectiveness of the internal

audit function;

to conduct exit interviews with any director,
manager, financial controller or internal audit
control manager upon their resignation in order to

ascertain the reasons for his departure;

to prepare work reports for presentation to the
Board and to prepare summary of work reports
for inclusion in the Group’s interim and annual

reports;

(ix)

(i)

(xii)

(xii)
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(xiv) to consider the appointment of any person to be a

Committee member, a company secretary,
auditors and accounting staff (including internal
control department) either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional Committee member, company
secretary, auditors and accounting staff or

dismissal of any of them;

(xv) to consider the major findings of internal

investigations and management’s response;

(xvi) to review the external auditor’'s management
letter, any material queries raised by the auditor
to management in respect of the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control

and management’s response;

(xvii) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external

auditor’'s management letter;

(xviii) to report to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions contained in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices set out in (and
as amended from time to time) Appendix 14 to

the Listing Rules; and

(xix) to consider other matters, as defined or assigned

by the Board from time to time.

In addition to the above tasks regarding to the
Company’s financial statement, the audit committee
should also to consider any other matters, as defined
by the Board from time to time; and to conduct
interviews with any director, manager, financial
controller upon their resignation in order to ascertain

the reasons for his departure;
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(e) The audit committee acknowledges its responsibility in
maintaining sound and effective internal control system
of the Group to safeguard investments of the

shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

()  The Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31
December 2011 has been reviewed by the audit

committee.

Shareholder Rights and Investor Relations

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at Shareholders’ meetings
are contained in the Company’s articles of association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll and the poll
procedures are included in all circulars to Shareholders and

will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange on the business day following the

Shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the Chairmen of the
audit committee and of the remuneration committee, or in
their absence, other members of the respective committees,
is available to answer questions at the Shareholders’

meetings.

Pursuant to Code Provision E1.2 of the CG Code, the
Chairman of the Board shall attend the AGM of the Company.
Due to the vacancy of chairman of the Company, Mr. Zhao
Guogiang shall chair the AGM of the Company held on 13
June 2012. This constitutes a deviation from the code

provision E1.2 of the Code.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual

directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an

informative and timely manner.

By the Order of the Board

Zhao Guogiang

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHE

The directors present herewith the Annual Report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries involves
sales of food and beverages in Hong Kong and exploration and
production of natural gas in PRC, the details of which are set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the Consolidated

Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 48.

The state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs as at 31
December 2011 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position on pages 49 to 50 and the Statement of Financial

Position on page 51, respectively.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend in

respect of the year ended 31 December 2011.
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated financial results and consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is

set out on page 148.
PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are

set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are

set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year,
together with reasons thereof, and of the Company’s share options,
are set out in note 30 and note 31 to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association or the Laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statements of changes in
equity on pages 52 and note 33 to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2011 are

set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively

during the financial year is as follows:

FREFEFRMEER

RUBRFER - TEXFPRHEE DG AEE
ZIHERMIRBERENT

Percentage of the Group’s total

EREEZBEEIL
Sales Purchases
HEHE 2301
Five largest customers in aggregate RREF @5 37%
The largest supplier SAHER 14%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate TR ER 4G 42%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had

any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of

this Annual Report as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Huang Changbi

Mr. Liu Baohe

Mr. Zhang Zhenming

Mr. Chan Shi Yung (resigned on 1 May 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fu Dali (appointed on 28 July 2011)
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

Mr. Sun Xiaoli (appointed on 1 July 2011)
Ms. Zhang Wei (resigned on 28 July 2011)
Mr. Yin Guohui (resigned on 1 July 2011)
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Pursuant to article 86(3) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Fu Dali
and Mr. Sun Xiaoli, independent non-executive directors were
appointed by the Board, shall hold office only until the AGM and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to articles 87(1) and
87(2) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhao Guogiang, executive
director, will also retire at the AGM and be eligible for re-election.
Mr. Zhao Guogiang, Mr. Fu Dali and Mr. Sun Xiaoli (together
defined as “Retiring Directors”), being eligible, will offer

themselves for re-election at the AGM.
DIRECTOR’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on

pages 12 to 15 of this annual report.
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation

other than statutory compensation.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or existed during the year.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests which they are taken or deemed to have under Section
344 of the SFO) or which are required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:

Long positions in Shares:

EERRODZERRAR

RZZ——&+=ZA=+—8" %%&%%&ﬁﬁz
ABHFEEZHEA L ZESIEARAEAR
HEMARZE(ERRESRBAEKRI(EH
REAE WA ) EXVE) 2 Bt - RN kEH
HIEEESRAEKRIEXVEE7REDHHRE
EMERRARIRBMZA o ER(BEESRAE
RBIEE 344 IGPTE VFSAR /5 2 5w ) + SRE 25 I
& D2 352 1637 7 BB A GZIE DI FT i 7E 2 it 8%
iz REFHITESF P ZIZETRIRE
JBEIE RN RSP N

Bt ziF R

Number of

ordinary shares

Approximate %

Name of Directors Nature of interest held Total of shareholdings
ExEH EEME FREEBEREE ait  BRZEBHESL
Zhao Guogiang Beneficial owner 10,200,000 10,200,000 0.13%

Pizl=i: BEEEA

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had, as at 31 December 2011, any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.

BEXFEBEEN RZT——F+_A=+—
B EFHARAZEETHAEBRERRAF
sk EATIARE A @ (F 8 R E5 R EEHE XY
) 2Bty - AR REEE RS AREH
HREBEGROIEXVEE7 R8N A MG AR
Bz RN AR (BEREZSEFAREE
BOHEX R A EIEHEA 2 amoAkB) -
YRR ARIEE 5 L E RO 362 I AR R
RIBFEZ Bz Eamsik R - SRIRIZEST
BIZBRME RN R R 2 kA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option scheme disclosures in the section
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” below, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.
SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the terms of the Scheme adopted conditionally by the
Company on 28 January 2002 and the amendment on 2 November
2006, the Board of the Company may, at its discretion, grant
options to eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

No share option was granted and outstanding during the year
under review and there was no outstanding share option as at 31
December 2011 and 2010.

The share option scheme expired on 28 January 2012.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than a director or chief executive of the Company,

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

HERHE

in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the

Company

KB RGIF 36 IRFEZECMAENARF
Z B AR P RA R TSOAR

RARXBDRORAEBRDTEE2HA

Approximate

Interest in percentage of
Interest in underlying Aggregate  issued share
Name of Shareholders Nature of interests shares shares interest capital
RIEER G HEBITRAE
RREB EatE R 2 s P RESBEE BHBEDE
U K. Prolific Petroleum Beneficial Owner 1,860,000,000 11,658,750,000 13,518,750,000 170.67%
Group Company E=EAA
Limited (note) (&%)
Wang Hanning (note) Interest of 1,860,000,000 11,658,750,000 13,518,750,000 170.67%
TE® (M) controlled
corporation
RS A R R
Note: U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Company Limited owned Bfa# : UK. Prolific Petroleum Group Company Limited

1,860,000,000 shares of the Company and convertible notes (the
“Convertible Note”) in the principal amount of HK$1,958,670,000
due in 2041 not carrying any interest with right to convert the
Convertible Note into shares of the Company at a conversion price
of HK$0.168 per share. Based on the conversion price of HK$0.168
per share, a maximum number of 11,658,750,000 shares may be
allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the Convertible Note in full. The Convertible Note gave rise to an
interest in 11,658,750,000 underlying shares of the Company of
U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Company Limited. U.K. Prolific
Petroleum Group Company Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Wang Hanning and such Mr. Wang Hanning deemed
to be interested in shares and the underlying shares of the

company held by U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Company Limited.

All the interests stated above represented long positions and as at
31 December 2011, there were no short position interests recorded

in the register.

#541,860,000,000 /8 A R B R 9 R A& A
1,958,670,0007%8 7T #) A 2 R R & ([ AT IR R
Bl o AIARBERBN TN —F 38 - TEHE
IR 2 - B TR AT IR B E AR 0.168 8 7T
BRI RBE R BARR ARG - RIEHMES
H0.168 LAt E - B A AR I 2 iR
EERBITEE A TRERBETHOROBE LS
#$11,658,750,000 % M 17 = U.K. Prolific
Petroleum Group Company Limited 18 {& A #2 i%
SZEFA AR R 11,658,750,000 B HHEEAR (5 2 18
# ° U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Company
Limted R EEEXRE2ENERHES T EE
B 5 £ A8 B R UK. Prolific Petroleum Group
Company Limited 78 2 IR 15 RABBER GO R #E

i -

biprEREOBER MR T ——F+_H
=T HYBEAAR RSN ELMA -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors were interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business which competed or were likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during

the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities, during

the year ended 31 December 2011.
BANK BORROWINGS AND BANKING FACILITIES

The Group had no outstanding bank borrowings as at 31
December 2011 and 2010.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout

the year ended 31 December 2011.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices

are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page 16 to 34

of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own Code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. All Directors have confirmed following specific enquiry
by the Company that they have complied with the required

standard set out in the Model Code through the year under review.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The Audit Committee has adopted terms
of reference which are in line with the CG Code. The Group’s
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, who is of the opinion
that such statements comply with applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and other legal requirements, and that

adequate disclosures have been made.
AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by BDO
Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

ERETESXENEESTR

RABERMA ETRANMEEAE s FTARE
FETEBHFXGHRETRI([BRESFRA DIERE
REZRRREFTETERR G ZITRFE -
BESEARIHEREESARER  BEREE
FEH-—BETEETAZRTSR

KEEKI A=A AR EELIFRITESARK
LEZZEBE BRZEGCLEMBENGT  H
CEEATA M- AEBBEE_T——%F
A

T oA+ —HULEFEZEERMEHREREHE
“REEEEN ERAXSHRREFTAERALT
AR EARBREMEGRE  YEELTES
W -
= EED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EHEGHE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEESE

The Remuneration Committee was established for the purpose of FTMEEENVEMNARNESERARTEBR K
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy FIEEERSRERE 2 HMEBEREZ - &
and structure for all remuneration of directors and senior AyMEE RN RBEWRMEXE ST -
management. The written terms of reference have described the ZEHBERADERELES - FHEESH
authority and duties of the Remuneration Committee which in line =ERBUIFMITERERELE  FEREER
with the CG Code were prepared and adopted. The Remuneration ERFIFRAELERR -

Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors,

namely Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing, Mr. Sun Xiaoli and Mr. Fu Dali.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD REEED

Zhao Guogiang HE R

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director TTHRAFRANTEE

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012 BB T —FZA=-++tH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B A2 BEN RS

|IBDO

EEE © +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25% Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HEETHEEPI15R
KL FI>251E

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Energy Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 147,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity, and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies, and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

HTERERMARERAERLAZEERR
(RESHETMEKLZFRAA)

AZEEE B TINE 48 HEF 147 HRBHEER
FEIER AR AR (TERR]) REKB AR (4
BIEEE])ZERATBHRE  WHBREBE
R-ZFE——F+_A=1+—B 2R RABHHK
MAKEHEZALFEZREEZEREE « 7
AiESEHRRGERERER  UREES;
BORBLE R EMREE R -

ESRGAMBRRAREZERE

BERREZAAARBEBGHMAGHEMZE
BRI E LR REB R AMRA 2 REHRTE - I
ARREESARENBERETFERNKEFRK
R MER 2 ERBRPA O E M REND B
BEZAMERE  RERHEBERAFER ZER
BMBHE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B A2 BEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B A2 BEN RS

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Choi Man On
Practising Certificate no. P02410

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012

Ao

g

AZBERE - AV BRRERET BB
SEAEREMAFERKR EQRAR BERER
“E—F+-A=+—HZMBRAKR &
BEREZALFEZERERASRE YEER
BRRDARDIZ RBREZRREL

BRUGREETMNEBAERAT
BEBETAD

8qYZ
2 FEEZ Y75 P02410

FEH —T——F=HA=-++tH

CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED shEgRHEzRaRAR | 47



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ARA T E N

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE—FT——F+_A=1+—HIFE

2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt ek FET FH&T
Turnover BT 6 73,876 85,376
Other income EH g A 7 374 5,563
Cost of inventories consumed LOBFETFE KA (39,297) (36,304)
Staff costs 8 TR A 8 (33,055) (31,836)
Operating lease rentals EHEES 8 (9,517) (11,847)
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEMRE TS
equipment (1,593) (685)
Fuel costs and utility expenses POHE RKEE (3,964) (5,905)
Fair value loss of financial assets held HEBEZEREEZRNFYE
for trading 518 (7,920) (21,100)
Impairment loss of deposits and %o REMERRIEY
other receivables RIEEE (14,369) (2,695)
Impairment loss of loan receivables EWE R 2R ERE 25 (51,941) (8,500)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B A 7]« Wz 37 — 9,855
Other operating expenses Hibh e (29,140) (32,909)
Finance costs BLE KA 29 (10,618) —
Loss before income tax MRETEBHATEE (127,164) (50,987)
Income tax credits FrigHiiie g 4,328 —
Loss for the year REEEE (122,836) (50,987)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEa=
Exchange differences arising on MBI INETSEE A 2 [E 5 2R
translation of foreign operations 13,372 —
Total comprehensive income AEEXHKRRERHE
for the year (109,464) (50,987)
Loss attributable to: THIFERESE :
Owners of the Company PIN/NETE 2 =D/ (122,836) (50,987)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = — —
(122,836) (50,987)
Total comprehensive income THIEAEE KA
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ =N (109,464) (50,987)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 — —
(109,464) (50,987)
Loss per share BRER 12
— Basic (HK cents) — B (BL) (1.80) (1.20)
— diluted (HK cents) — 58 (B(L) (1.80) (1.20)

48 | ANNUAL REPORT 2011 %38



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

sra IR

At 31 December 2011
R_F——F+=-_A=1+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —ZF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B =E FHET T
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 15 4,268 1,337
Exploration and evaluation assets RN EEE 16 602,105 —
Intangible assets mARE 17 2,946,388 —
Rental deposits and other deposits Heke RHEMETS 19 416 1,174
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEETE AR Z 1% 32 — 804,000
Deferred tax assets EEFIRE E 20 77,481 =
3,630,658 806,511
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 9,754 5,516
Trade receivables FE U BR FX 22 9 41
Financial assets held for trading EEBEEZEmEE 23 5,487 29,677
Other receivables, deposits and EipEWIE - 518 R
prepayments SEENE 24 14,067 47,575
Loan receivables FEME TR 25 — 51,941
Amounts due from related companies FEUL B8 N Rl Z IR 27 4,681 12,450
Tax recoverable Al B Fi 18 — 54
Cash and bank balances IRE NIRITHARS 378,011 4,674
412,009 151,928
Assets of a disposal company SEARFELECLE
classified as held for sale NE|BE 36 5,711 —
417,720 151,928
Total assets BEEHAE 4,048,378 958,439
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FETBRRR 26 8,749 8,159
Other payables and accruals Hib e~ 708 & et 208 26 386,193 30,132
Amount due to a related company et —EIREE A rl FIE 27 6,954 13,598
Provision for legal claims FEERRERE 28 5,000 —
406,896 51,889
Liabilities of a disposal company DEAFEREZHERF
classified as held for sale =0 36 4,002 —
410,898 51,889
Net current assets RBEEFE 6,822 100,039
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABERS 3,637,480 906,550
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
sra IR

At 31 December 2011
R_F——F+=-_A=1+—H

2011 2010
—E-—F —E-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B =E FERT FAT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible notes GIE:0 & 29 99,549 =
Other payable H T RR 26 51,240 —
Amount due to a shareholder FER — %Hxﬁl 18 27 42,409 —
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBE R 20 53 53
Provision for long service payments RERTS S HHE 86 86
193,337 139
Net assets EEFE 3,444,143 906,411
Equity R
Share capital R& AR 30 396,056 217,684
Reserves fHiE 3,047,334 687,974
Attributable to owners of the Company N2 RSB AFE(L 3,443,390 905,658
Non-controlling interests IR AR o 753 753
Total equity HEER 3,444,143 906,411
These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue EFEEN_T—F-A-TtABEREET
by the board of directors on 27 March 2012. B2EVHERE -
Zhao Guogiang Chui Kwong Kau
Director Director
EF EF
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BT AR L 2R

At 31 December 2011
R_F——F+=-_A=1+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
D= FET FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RSB AR Z xS 18 3,591,116 18
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEEKHB AT 2514 32 — 804,000
3,591,116 804,018
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets held for trading HEBEEZEMEE 23 5,487 29,677
Other receivables, deposits and HaEUEIE ~ 5Ta MTER
prepayments A — 46,798
Loan receivables EE R 25 — 51,941
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTER 21,180 1,371
26,667 129,787
Current liabilities HREBEE
Other payables and accruals H M fE S 5B R BT R 11,173 22,935
Net current assets REEEZE 15,494 106,852
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERABEE 3,606,610 910,870
Non-current liabilities FERBASE
Convertible notes AT I 29 99,549 —
Amount due to a shareholder FE — Z AL R I8 27 42,409 —
141,958 —
Net assets EEZFE 3,464,652 910,870
Equity s
Share capital R& AR 30 396,056 217,684
Reserves s 33 3,068,596 693,186
Total equity R 3,464,652 910,870
These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue BEEeRN T —F=-A- T+ tHIERKET
by the board of directors on 27 March 2012. BZEMBRE
Zhao Guogiang Chui Kwong Kau
Director Director
EFE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE—_FT——F+_A=+—HIFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAABEARE
Convertible Non-
Issued  Contributed Share notes  Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus premium reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests equity
BEfT B R

B BABK W ROEE W RERE  2ERE  RiEE Nt kBREE  BREEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL TAL THL TAL THL TAL THL THL
(note (1)) (note (i) (note (1))
(P (i) (RizE (i) (BizE )

Balanceat 1 January 2010 ~ R=Z-%4-f-H

2 181,434 30,004 853,146 — — (425,844) 638,740 753 639,493

Total comprehensive income  AFE2AME L
for the year — — — — — (50,987) (50,987) — (50,987)
Issue of share capital BIRA 36,250 = 281,655 = = = 317,905 = 317,905

Balance at 31 December 2010 R-Z-BE+—f

=t+-HzE&s 217,684 30,004 1,134,801 — — (476,831) 905,658 753 906,411
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE2AKHES
for the year - - - - 13372 (1228%)  (109.464) — (109464)
Issue of convertible notes for ~ BLREMBARETZ
acquisition of subsidiaries TRRER — — — 2618811 - — 2618811 — 2618811
Issue of share capitalupon ~ RERATHREHE
conversion of convertible notes %472 iR (Kt 29)
(Note 29) 178,372 — 463,591 (613,578) — — 28,385 — 28,385
Balance at 31 December 2011  R=E——%+=f
o = 396,056 30,004 1,598,392 2,005,233 13,372 (599,667) 3,443,390 753 3,444,143
(i)  Natures of reserves are explained in the notes stated in the statement () (EEEERARRESZER 2 M (e
of changes in equity of Company (Note 33). 33) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\\’T\ E/% \ 74 ;ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE—_FT——F+_A=+—HIFZE

2011 2010
e B
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Lz FET FHETT
Cash flows from operating activities KEXKHEESHRE
Loss before income tax G REE T (127,164) (50,987)
Adjustments for: A TNIEE B A -
Interest expenses 2R 10,618 —
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BENMEREZITE
equipment 1,593 685
Gain on disposal of property, plantand &Y - BE &EE 2 WS
equipment 45 —
Interest income F BB A (343) (5,527)
Fair value loss of financial assets held BIEEEZSMEEZ ANFEE
for trading Bt 7,920 21,100
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERB AR 2 W 3i7 — (9,855)
Exchange loss, net b 5 B HRFE 8,417 =
Impairment loss of deposits and Re MH MW FIA 2 REEE
other receivables 14,369 2,695
Impairment loss of loan receivables FEWE Tk 7 B EEE 51,941 8,500
Operating cash flows before working st AREBEEARSFHAEEEE
capital changes mE (32,604) (33,389)
Increase in inventories FEE (4,655) (1,074)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEUBRZL (3 Hn) &4 (5) 252
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets  #H{EB & 2 & & EmM D /(& MN)
held for trading 16,270 (1,372)
Decrease in other receivables, deposits  E i fEWZRIE - 514 MIEFIE
and prepayments A 20,109 61,942
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due U BB N B IR A (B )
from related companies 7,769 (2,042)
Increase in trade payables FETBR R IE 0 1,845 748
(Decrease)/increase in current other BN B At FE {5 RN IB R FEET 2RI
payables and accruals CRt )/i*jju (194,033) 9,446
Decrease in amount due to a related JEA — eI REE FIE R A
company (6,644) (4,100)
Decrease in amount due to a shareholder F&f—% % 5z T8R4 (59,890) =
Increase in non-current other payables  FEi7R B H fib & < ZRIE1E N 49,560 —
Cash (used in)/generated from REXK(FBAH), FEEZRS
operations (202,278) 30,411
Interest received BEFE 343 3,163
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EREFBFEH 54 375
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEEE (R FELRS
operating activities =R (201,881) 33,949
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e RETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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2011 2010
—E——F —Z=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Lz FET FHET
Cash flows from investing activities BREXKRERE
Acquisition of property, plant and WEEMIZ « RE N &
equipment (1,031) (74)
Acquisition of exploration and evaluation U & Ehix K 5Tk & &=
assets (21,436) —
Net cash inflow arising from acquisition AWK B A RELZEERA
of subsidiaries FEE 32 599,412 —
Net cash inflow arising from disposal HENBAREELEZESRA
of subsidiaries Pk 37 — 1,201
Deposits paid for the proposed AREZWENBARSI N2
acquisition of subsidiaries — (859,000)
Inception of loans receivables B R E K — (26,783)
Repayment of loan receivables BZ R E X — 24,000
Net cash generated from/(used in) REXBMEE (FBA)BS
investing activities B 576,945 (360,656)
Financing activities REEE
Issue of new shares, net of expenses BITHAR - HIBRFAX 30 - 317,905
Proceeds from bank loans RITE TS FE — 2,000
Net cash generated from financing BMETEFELR S EE
activities — 319,905
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and WeRERRSIEMCR)FEE
cash equivalents 375,064 (6,802)
Cash in assets of a disposal company Sl A{EHE 2 HEQT]
classified as held for sale REEE 36 (2,709) —
Cash and cash equivalents at FHAzRERERRS
beginning of year 4,674 11,476
Effects of foreign exchange rate MEREe 2 w2
changes 982 —
Cash and cash equivalents atend of H&CHERZERRE  GFEHRE
year, comprising cash and RERITHEER
bank balances 378,011 4,674
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE—_FT——F+_A=+—HIFZE

1. ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 4 April 2001
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. Its
principal place of business is located at Unit 5611-12, The
Center, 99 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong.

The shares of Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”) with

effect from 18 February 2002.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are

described in note 18.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs effective 1

January 2011

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)
-Interpretation 14

HK(IFRIC)
-Interpretation 19

HKAS 24 (Revised)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

Classification of Rights Issues

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

Related Party Disclosures

The adoption of these new/revised standards and
interpretations has no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs effective 1
January 2011 (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) — Business Combinations

As part of the Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010,
HKFRS 3 has been amended to clarify that the option to
measure non-controlling interests (“NCI”) at either fair
value or the NCl's proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets is limited to instruments that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in the
event of liquidation. Other components of NCI are
measured at their acquisition date fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
The Group has amended its accounting policies for
measuring NCI but the adoption of the amendment has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

HKAS 24 (Revised) — Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) amends the definition of related
party and clarifies its meaning. This may result in
changes to those parties who are identified as being
related parties of the reporting entity. The Group has
reassessed the identification of its related parties in
accordance with the revised definition and considered
as no impact on the current and comparative periods
related party transactions disclosure. The adoption of
HKAS24 (Revised) has no impact on the Group’s
reported profit or loss, total comprehensive income or
equity for any period presented.

HKAS 24 (Revised) also introduces simplified
disclosure requirements applicable to related party
transactions where the Group and the counterparty are
under the common control, joint control or significant
influence of a government, government agency or
similar body. These new disclosures are not relevant to
the Group because the Group is not a government
related entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE—_FT——F+_A=+—HIFZE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant

to the Group’s operations, have been issued but are not

yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1

(Revised)

Amendments to HKAS 32

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 29 (2011)

Disclosures — Transfers to
Financial Assets!
Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®
Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?
Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities*

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial
Statements®

Joint Arrangements?®

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities®
Fair Value Measurement®

Separate Financial
Statements®

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?®

Employee Benefits®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE—_FT——F+_A=+—HIFZE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the disclosure
requirements for transfer transactions of financial assets
and allow users of financial statements to better
understand the possible effects of any risks that may
remain with the entity on transferred assets. The
amendments also require additional disclosures if a
disproportionate amount of transfer transactions are
undertaken around the end of a reporting period.
Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the
Group to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into those that may be
reclassified to profit and loss in the future (e.g.
revaluations of available-for-sale financial assets) and
those that may not (e.g. revaluations of property, plant
and equipment). Tax on items of other comprehensive
income is allocated and disclosed on the same basis.

The amendments will be applied retrospectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE—_FT——F+_A=+—HIFZE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRAEBMBERSELNN(BFEBHMK
%

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) Al]) &)
(Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) EEMERRERZIET B

are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value
gains or losses will be recognised in profit or loss
except for those non-trade equity investments, which
the entity will have a choice to recognise the gains and
losses in other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9
carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss, where the
amount of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition

of financial assets and financial liabilities.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether or
not that power is used in practice), exposure or rights
to variable returns from the investee and the ability to
use the power over the investee to affect those returns.
HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the
assessment of control. For example, the standard
introduces the concept of “de facto” control where an
investor can control an investee while holding less than
50% of the investee’s voting rights in circumstances
where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant size
relative to the size and dispersion of those of other
individual shareholders to give it power over the
investee. Potential voting rights are considered in the
analysis of control only when these are substantive, i.e.
the holder has the practical ability to exercise them.
The standard explicitly requires an assessment of
whether an investor with decision making rights is
acting as principal or agent and also whether other
parties with decision making rights are acting as agents
of the investor. An agent is engaged to act on behalf of
and for the benefit of another party and therefore does
not control the investee when it exercises its decision
making authority. The implementation of HKFRS 10 may
result in changes in those entities which are regarded
as being controlled by the Group and are therefore
consolidated in the financial statements. The
accounting requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on
other consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively
subject to certain transitional provisions.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 11— Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 have the same
basic characteristics as joint ventures under HKAS 31.
Joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. Where the Group has
rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement, it is regarded as a joint operator
and will recognise its interests in the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses arising from the joint
arrangement. Where the Group has rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement as a whole, it is
regarded as having an interest in a joint venture and
will apply the equity method of accounting. HKFRS 11
does not allow proportionate consolidation. In an
arrangement structured through a separate vehicle, all
relevant facts and circumstances should be considered
to determine whether the parties to the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
Previously, the existence of a separate legal entity was
the key factor in determining the existence of a jointly
controlled entity under HKAS 31. HKFRS 11 will be
applied retrospectively with specific restatement
requirements for a joint venture which changes from
proportionate consolidation to the equity method and a
joint operation which changes from equity method to

accounting for assets and liabilities.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosures requirements about interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements. It also
introduces new disclosure requirements, including
those related to unconsolidated structured entities. The
general objective of the standard is to enable users of
financial statements to evaluate the nature and risks of
a reporting entity’s interests in other entities and the
effects of those interests on the reporting entity’s

financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on
how to measure fair value when it is required or
permitted by other standards. The standard applies to
both financial and non-financial items measured at fair
value and introduces a fair value measurement
hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS
13 defines fair value as the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The standard
removes the requirement to use bid and ask prices for
financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active
market. Rather the price within the bid-ask spread that
is most representative of fair value in the circumstances
should be used. It also contains extensive disclosure
requirements to allow users of the financial statements
to assess the methods and inputs used in measuring
fair values and the effects of fair value measurements
on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 can be adopted

early and is applied prospectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs
and the directors are not yet in a position to quantify the

effects on the Group’s financial statements.
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3.

64

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

(b)

(c)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Basic of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in

which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective
dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line

with those used by other members of the Group.
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66

Fr-A=1T—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interest that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are

deducted from equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(@)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first
applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in
accordance with the transition requirements in the
standard. Such balances are not adjusted upon first
application of the standard. Subsequent revisions to
estimates of such consideration are treated as
adjustments to the cost of these business combinations
and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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4.

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant

assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

(©)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is
able to exercise control. Control is achieved where the
Company, directly or indirectly, has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity,
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently exercisable

are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over the

economic activity.

Assets that the Group controls and liabilities that it
incurs in relation to jointly controlled operations are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position on an accrual basis and classified
according to the nature of the item. The Group’s share
of income that it earns from jointly controlled operations
together with the expenses that it incurs are included in
profit or loss when it is probable that economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to/from the

Group.
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4.

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any

accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are

as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3-6 years or over the term
of the lease; if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 4-8 years

Motor vehicles 6-8 years

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,

plant and equipment is the difference between the net

sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is

recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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Fr-A=1T—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at
cost on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial
recognition, exploration and evaluation assets are
stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Costs directly associated with an exploratory wells
(drilling cost and others) are capitalised pending a
determination of whether sufficient quantities of
potentially economic oil and gas reserves have been
discovered. If it is determined that commercial
discovery has not been achieved, these costs are

charged to profit or loss.

Expenditure incurred in the preliminary exploration

stage are written off as expense as incurred.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting natural resources become demonstrable,
and that the project reaches development phase,
previously recognised exploration and evaluation
assets are reclassified as either intangible or tangible
assets. These assets are assessed for impairment
before reclassification.

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
assets is reviewed when facts and circumstances
suggest that the carrying amount of an exploration and
evaluation assets may exceed its recoverable amount.
When one or more of the following events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable, the Group shall perform an
impairment test in accordance with HKAS 36.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets
(Continued)

the period for which the Group has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during
the period or will expire in the near future, and is

not expected to be renewed.

substantive expenditure on further exploration for
and evaluation of natural resources in the specific

area is neither budgeted nor planned.

exploration for and evaluation of natural resources
in the specific area have not led to the discovery
of commercially viable quantities of natural
resources and the Group has decided to

discontinue such activities in the specific area.

sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to
proceed, the carrying amount of the exploration
and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in

full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss

whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its

recoverable amount.
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Fr-A=1T—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The interests in petroleum
production sharing contracts were amortised on

unit of production method.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment annually by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised for the asset in prior years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continued)
Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired (see the accounting
policies in respect of impairment losses for

tangible and intangible assets below).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding lease commitment is shown as a liability.
Lease payments are analysed between capital and
interest. The interest element is charged to profit or loss
over the period of the lease and is calculated so that it
represents a constant proportion of the lease liability.
The capital element reduces the balance owed to the

lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental

expense, over the term of the lease.
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76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists

or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment under cost model;

° investments in subsidiaries; and

o intangible assets

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the first-in first out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price

in the ordinary course of business less the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

() Financial Instruments

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured
at fair value and all other financial assets are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by

regulation or convention in the marketplace

concerned.
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78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets are classified as held for

trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale

in the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less any identified impairment losses.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of

impairment may include:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— Dbreach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

— granting concession to a debtor because of

debtor’s financial difficulty;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation.
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HE—FT——F+_A=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance

account for the relevant financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR MR

m

For the year ended 31 December 2011
FZA=+—HIFE

=4

4.

=oF——

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

(iv)

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly

attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, borrowings, certain
preference shares and the debt element of
convertible notes issued by the Group are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest

expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as

through the amortisation process.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity

instruments is classified as an equity instrument.
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Fr-A=1T—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv) Convertible notes (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue
of the convertible notes and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing
the conversion option for the holder to convert the
loan notes into equity, is included in equity

(convertible notes equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible notes reserve
until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in convertible notes
equity reserve will be transferred to share
premium. Where the option remains unexercised
at the expiry dates, the balance stated in
convertible notes equity reserve will be released
to the retained earnings. No gain or loss is
recognised upon conversion or expiration of the

option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE—FT——Ff=

A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a

shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and deposits held at call with banks, and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the

purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale when:

— they are available for immediate sale;

— management is committed to a plan to sell;

— it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan

will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

— an active programme to locate a buyer has been

initiated;
— the asset or disposal group is being marketed at

a reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

— a sale is expected to complete within 12 months
from the date of classification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE—_FT——F+_A=+—HIFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(m)

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups (Continued)
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as

held for sale are measured at the lower of:

— their carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the

Group’s accounting policy; and

— fair value less costs to sell.

Following their classification as held for sale, non-
current assets (including those in a disposal group) are

not depreciated.

The results of operations disposed of during the year

are included in profit or loss up to the date of disposal.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and

deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the end of reporting period.
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ended 31 December 2011
FHZA=1+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

86 | ANN

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at
the tax rates expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are

also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

(0)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of

economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operates (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in

other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority
interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(0)

(P)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative

exchange differences recognised in the foreign

exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the

date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part

of the profit or loss on disposal.

Employees’ benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to

the end of reporting period.

Employment Ordinance long service payments
Certain employees of the Group have completed
the required number of years of service under the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“‘Employment Ordinance”) to be eligible for long
service payments upon termination of their
employment. The Group is only liable to make
such payments where the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the

Employment Ordinance.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss when the services are rendered by the

employees.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Employees’ benefits (Continued)
(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself
to terminate employment or to provide benefits as
a result of voluntary redundancy by having a
detailed formal plan which is without realistic

possibility of withdrawal.

(q) Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

as follows:

(i)  Revenue from restaurant operations is recognised
when catering services are provided to

customers.

(i) Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
is at the time of delivery and title is passed to

customer.

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time-
apportioned basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the interest

rates applicable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel

of the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

92

(Continued)

(r) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply: (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or

of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(iy  that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner,

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to

be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

(i) Impairment of loans and receivables
The Group makes impairment provision for receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
balance. Provisions are applied to receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balance may not be collectible. The identification of
impaired receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of receivables and provision for impaired
receivables in the year in which such estimate has
been changed. If the financial condition of the debtors
were to deteriorate, additional impairment may be

required.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(ii)

Estimation of oil and gas resources and/or
reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s oil and gas
resources and/or reserves as inherently imprecise and
represent only approximate amounts because of the
subjective judgements involved in developing such
information. Contingent resources are quantities of oil
and gas estimated, to be potentially recoverable from
known accumulations by application of development
projects, but which are not currently considered to be
commercially recoverable due to one or more
contingencies. There are authoritative guidelines
regarding the engineering criteria that have to be met
before contingent resources can be categorised as oil
and gas reserves and estimated oil and gas reserves
can be designated as “proved”. Proved and proved
developed reserves estimates are updated at least
annually and take into account recent production and
technical information about each field. In addition, as
prices and cost levels change from year to year, the
estimate of proved and proved developed reserves
also changes. This change is considered as a change
in estimation for accounting purposes and is reflected
on a prospective basis in related depreciation rates.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
depreciation expense, impairment expense and future
dismantlement costs. Depreciation rates are
determined based on estimated proved developed
reserve quantities (the denominator) and capitalised
costs of producing properties (the numerator).
Producing properties’ capitalised costs are amortised
based on the unit-of-production method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE—FT——F+_A=1+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Recognition of deferred income tax

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note
4(m), deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilised, and it is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax assets are
realised. In determining the deferred income tax assets
to be recognised, management is required to estimate
the future applicable tax rate for each subsidiary of the
Company at each tax jurisdiction and the profitability of
each subsidiary, so as to estimate the future utilisation
of tax losses. Any difference between these estimates
and the actual outcome will impact the Group’s result in

the period in which the actual outcome is determined.

Suspended Investment

For investments which have been suspended from
trading as at year end, the fair value was measured
with reference to the quoted price of the last dealing
date before suspension of trade and other available
information consider appropriate by the Directors. The
carrying amounts of these investments are
approximately HK$5,332,000 (2010: Nil).

ARSI HERATTIHAPREZ

ERRIR (&)
(ii)) HERBEIE ARG

(iv)

RIBM FE4(m) &S 5T BUR AR E
BEEPTSTHEER G Al L IR AR R FE
ARIE R M) DA 3 T 00 B R R
TRERE T T AR - RIS IRAAR
BEIEFTSTH A ER TR B 2 B R AT
B -BEBTHERIECHEHEE
K BIEEAR/ANR RN EHEHE
BZMBARMGERRERZHER
EMBARZBAEEN - UTEFHIR
BRZARERER - ZFhEE
BRERFNEMNZEIBTEAEE
REEERERMEANZEE -

EERXGZRE

BRREREERHGZREMS * RF
BENZELERSH&KE—ERS
BzHREREERAGEHEMER
HE-ZERENEEELDNAR
5,332,000 BT (ZE—F4F : ) -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Valuation of convertible notes

The directors of the Company use their judgement in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique for the
Group’s convertible notes which are not quoted in the
active market. The fair value of the liability and equity
components inside the convertible notes are estimated
by an independent professional valuer. The fair value of
these components varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions. Any change in these
variables so adopted may materially affect the

estimation of the fair value of these components.

Estimated fair value of the acquired intangible
assets

Fair value of interests in petroleum production sharing
contract is determined based on the income approach.
These calculations require the use of estimates about
future cash flows, discount rate and oil and gas
resources and/or reserves. In the process of estimation,
management makes assumptions about future cash
flow, outputs, costs and oil and gas resources and/or

reserves.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE—_FT——F+_A=+—HIFZE

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXBERHBEHR
The Group determines its operating segments based on the AEBREFELERKAETHENNA
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief HRE BEHLEHE - URSHBAKE
operating decision-maker in order to allocate resources to BRI AT HRIR - RIBAREE B ASHE
the segment and to assess its performance. In accordance B RERE  KEDMBIIREBIEL S
with the Group’s internal organisation and reporting structure 7 e

the operating segments are based on nature of business.

The Group has the following two reportable segments: NEEE THIMI{ER 255 5P -

The Exploration and Production segment is engaged in the R R EEDES - BERARDR - FE
exploration, development, production and sales of natural HERSHERTS -

gas.

The Sales of Food and Beverages Business segment is HERMRAHER D - feEh VB2
engaged in the operation of Chinese restaurants and the EERMERHEERm R 2 E -

sales of food and beverages to restaurants.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The segment information provided to the Board for the

reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2011

and 2010 are as follows:

6. EXFRIBER (&)

HE_F

=t—HILEHFE

77&&—7

RS EERMT

TE+-_A
RAZHNHRNESS

(@) Information about reportable segment revenue, (@) BEAT2®mo Uz - RmFINE
profit or loss and other information BHERREMER
Sales of
Exploration Food and
and Beverages
Production Business Total
HEEMR
BMRREE EE S wE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET
For the year ended BE-Z——%+=8
31 December 2011 =qp—EllesZ)E
Revenue from external HNERR P W 2k
customers — 73,876 73,876
Reportable segment loss Al 2 5 2R P15 156 B 518
before income tax (33,390) (65) (33,455)
Segment results included: DEPEE BRI
Interest income B U A 343 — 343
Depreciation e 965 577 1,542
Additions to non-current FERBEE
assets NE 3,532,355 1,005 3,533,360
Reportable segment assets T2 HOPEE 4,000,094 21,018 4,021,112
Reportable segment A 2/oH
liabilities afE (424,463) (26,631) (451,094)
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. ZEHBERIIBER @)
(Continued)
(@) Information about reportable segment revenue, (a) BEAT 2o B - @K E
profit or loss and other information (Continued) BWERKREMER (&)
Sales of
Food and
Exploration Beverages
and Production Business Total
HERm&
IR R A E RS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FAT
For the year ended BE-Z—-Z5+=A
31 December 2010 =+—HLFE
Revenue from external NI E I 2k
customers — 85,376 85,376
Reportable segment profit A] 2 3R D 305 Fr 155 A i 7
before income tax — 9,778 9,778
Segment results included: DEPEE B
Interest income F B WA — _ _
Depreciation e — 635 635
Additions to non-current FERBEE
assets RE — 74 74
Reportable segment assets T 2HDILEE — 23,545 23,545
Reportable segment Al 23R/
liabilities BE — (29,093) (29,093)
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERIHBER E)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, (b) AIE2MAIFRANHEE BEER
assets and liabilities BEZEHIR
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TFETT
Loss before income tax BRETSBIATE 8
Reportable segment (loss)/profit before ZmD EBBEAEE AT
income tax Eﬁ?ﬁ)/aﬁ' (33,455) 9,778
Other income EH bl A 12 5,527
Impairment loss on deposits e Rk H ALY FIR
and other receivables ZIR{EEE (14,369) (2,695)
Impairment loss on loan receivables W E 2 BEEE (51,941) (8,500)
Fair value loss of financial assets held BIEEEZEMEEZ AT EE
for trading &8 (7,920) (21,100)
Finance costs BhE R A (10,618) —
Unallocated head office and corporate RO BC4AHI SR R A FFX
expenses (8,873) (33,997)
Loss before income tax & P15 %5 A 5 18 (127,164) (50,987)
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets T%i&"*ﬁé? 4,021,112 23,545
Other receivables H b eI RIE 240 47,230
Financial assets held for trading FEEEZEREE 5,487 29,677
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WHEHB AR 2514 — 804,000
Loan receivables FEWE X — 51,941
Unallocated head office and AOBEAMNER N AR EE
corporate assets 21,539 2,046

Total assets

o
cRb

BB E 4,048,378 958,439
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHRIHBER (E)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, (b) FAERHILEADEE - EER

assets and liabilities (Continued)

BEZHR (f;)

2011 2010
—_E2——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Liabilities aE

Reportable segment liabilities AZ2\HHEaE 451,094 29,093
Convertible notes AR =g 99,549 —
Amount due to a shareholder e — B RFIB 42,409 —

Unallocated head office and ROBERHEERABAE
corporate liabilities 11,183 22,935
Total liabilities FEN=RE 604,235 52,028

(c) Geographic information (c) HEER

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current
assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax

T%%%JZEIW%IEF@%QQI\&BE)EZ
W FERPEE(SRIA - RIT
MREERFELEEERN [

assets and assets held for sale (“Specified non- EFERBEE]) DT
current assets”).
Revenue from external Specified
customers non-current assets
REIIBEF 2 Wi EEFRBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F “T-TF —F—-F —T-IF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FTHET T FTHER THET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) & (s 2h) 73,876 85,376 6,504 806,511
People’s Republic of China FhiE A RAFNE ([FRE)
(“PRC’) — — 3,546,673 —
73,876 85,376 3,553,177 806,511
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7. OTHER INCOME 7. HfblgA
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Bank interest income SRITH BULA 343 3
Rental income Ha WA 30 31
Sundry income HETEUT A 1 5
Interest income from other loans HEMERZHEWA — 5,524
374 5,563
8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. MRFIBHAIEE
2011 2010
—E——F T -TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHTT
Loss before income tax is arrived at TS AT ETE E 1k
after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration SR EN < 1,000 966
Cost of inventories consumed LOHRETEK AR 39,297 36,304
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BENMREZITE
equipment 1,593 685
Exchange loss, net b i B 18 F A 8,417 —
Staff costs (including directors’ EIRAN(BIEEEML)
remuneration)
— Wages and salaries and —TE R REMBETR
other benefits 32,217 30,747
— Pension fund contributions RIRGT R R 838 1,089
33,055 31,836
Operating lease payment on lease HEMEZ REHEAOMNRK
premises
— Related companies — BERAR] 4,354 4,160
— Third parties = E=) 5,163 7,687
9,517 11,847
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9. INCOME TAX CREDITS 9. Fi5HiER
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of SLEEEREKRANFEERE

comprehensive income represents:

2011 2010

—E——F —E—TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Current tax — PRC BNEAFRIE — AR (5) —
Deferred tax (Note 20) IEFERIA (fi5E20) 4,333 —
Total income tax credits FiiSfiik e a%E 4,328 —

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had tax losses for both years. PRC enterprise income
tax is calculated at 25% on the estimated assessable profit

for the year.

The income tax credits for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before income tax per the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

AR AE BN EEE LSS IEERE -
MBS S L BE - hEhE
FRB L ToAR IR & N {51 FE SR B0 A1) 3 B =6
25% T &

AEERBREETEGE2EBRERA
ZBRAS I REIR SR T

2011 2010
—E——F —ET—TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET AT
Loss before income tax B PSR AT E 1B (127,164) (50,987)
Effect of tax at Hong Kong profits tax BEBBFEHFE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) (ZZ—ZF : 16.5%) ZHBEHE (20,982) (8,413)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries F E fib T34 [& 48 4 2 [l 8 A & 5 =
operating in other jurisdiction EPa-Z - (1,469) —
Tax effect of income not taxable for IERFRWA Z TG E
tax purposes (111) (1,520)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RIS 2 B2
for tax purposes 13,904 8,870
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses HANBBRECHETE (25) (21)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZARBBHEEEB 2 HETE
recognised 4,355 1,084
Income tax credits for the year FREEHER (4,328) —
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10. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 10.

COMPANY

The loss attributable to owners of the Company includes an
amount of HK$93,414,000 (2010: HK$59,071,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

11. DIVIDEND

(a) Basic

RAREEARGLER

EARB 2 BHmMEF - NRRHEE AR
HE1E B HE—%5FIE93,414,0008 T (=&
—Z4F : 59,071,000/ 7T) ©

11. KE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 HEZZ——F+-A=+—HLFEL
December 2011 (2010: Nil), nor has any dividend been FERNSERERARE(ZE—FF - &)
proposed since the end of reporting period (2010: Nil). Q WMERARENBERREAMRE(ZE—F
F ) o
12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. BREE
(@) E
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss SREREBTBEARRES AEG
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted ESTERR ARAA B 1T E AR I TS
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the HEE -
period.
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss attributable to owners of the AAREE AEGEE
Company (122,836) (50,987)
Number of Number of
shares shares
BoEA 4=
Weighted average number of BT T mARNiE T2

ordinary shares in issue

6,813,495,231 4,250,392,329

HK Cents HK Cents
AL AL
Basic loss per share HREAREE 1.80 1.20
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12. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 12. BRERE @)
(b) Diluted (b) #58
No diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 MEZINHEE-_FT——F+= A
December 2011 is presented as the potential ordinary =+ —BIEFEZSREEEE - It
shares on convertible notes are anti-dilutive. ThE S R Al AR SRR 2 AR AR

AREENE -

No diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 MEZINEE-_"FT-—FTF+=A
December 2010 is presented as the Company has no :+—E¢¢J§ZHQT§&%J§5E 2
potential dilutive ordinary shares at 31 December 2010. THRARGRZE—FF '1—: A

=t BUEEEEE T AR -

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 13. EECME
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-Z——F+-A=+—HLEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2011
Fees in kind contributions Total
e ERR B —E——F
ik BRIz Bg 3 ko]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THERT TERT THERT THERT
Executive directors HTES
Chan Shi Yung (i) BR A 82 (1) — 160 4 164
Chui Kwong Kau B YEEK — 455 12 467
Huang Changbi =EE 390 - — 390
Liu Baohe 2T 520 — — 520
Zhao Guogiang it B 5 520 — — 520
Zhang Zhenming SRR AR 390 - - 390
Independent non-executive BYFEHITES
directors
Fu Dali (ii) SHRF (i) 75 — — 75
Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing EE=S1E 180 - - 180
Sun Xiaoli (iii) TRIBERE (i) 90 — — 90
Yin Guohui (iv) BRETHE (iv) 90 - - 90
Zhang Wei (v) FRAE (V) 105 - - 105
2,360 615 16 2,991
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 13. EEZME @)

Year ended 31 December 2011 (Continued) BE_Z——S+-A=+—HLFE#E)

(i) Mr. Chan Shi Yung resigned on 1 May 2011. () BEBREER-FT——FRA—HE
Fo

(i) Mr. Fu Dali appointed on 28 July 2011. (i) [RFEERZZE—FEA=ZTN
BHEEE -

(iii)  Mr. Sun Xiaoli appointed on 1 July 2011. (i) FREBRLER=ZZT——FtH—HE
ZRAE -

(iv)  Mr. Yin Guohui resigned on 1 July 2011. (iv) BREEXRER=T——FtH—HE
e

(v) Ms. Zhang Wei resigned on 28 July 2011. (v) REXRTR-_F——FtH=+/\H
BHE o

Year ended 31 December 2010 HEe—_T—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme 2010
Fees inkind  contributions Total
e 2R Bk —E-ZF
EEHS EMFE FEIHR k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FAT FAL FAL
Executive directors HITES

Chan Shi Yung PRA A — 540 12 552
Chui Kwong Kau ELER — 490 12 502
Huang Changpbi (i) =B E() 260 — — 260
Liu Baohe 2E M 560 — — 560
Wang Ligang (i) F 570 (ii) 160 — — 160
Zhao Guogiang B 58 560 — — 560
Zheng Ke Wen (iii) BRARZ (i) 160 — — 160
Zhang Zhenming (iv) SRIRFA (iv) 260 — — 260

Independent non-executive MNHHTES

directors

Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing (V) BLE (v) 75 — — 75
Wong Tik Tung (vi) S RER (Vi) 105 — — 105
Yin Guohui EX B #E 180 — — 180
Zhang Wei RIE 180 — — 180
2,500 1,030 24 3,554
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 13. EEzMe @)

Year ended 31 December 2010 (Continued) BHE-_ZTZTF+-A=+—HLFEHE)

(i)  Mr. Huang Changbi appointed on 9 June 2010. () HEBEER-Z-ZTFANBE
ZAE -

(i)~ Mr. Wang Ligang resigned on 9 June 2010. (i) FZMEER=ZT—ZFSANBE
Fo

(i)  Ms. Zheng Ke Wen resigned on 9 June 2010. (i) BEXZLTRZZ—ZFANARE
To

(iv) Mr. Zhang Zhenming appointed on 9 June 2010. (iv) SRIRFAGZAER-ZT—TFSANAE
ZE e

(v)  Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing appointed on 30 July 2010. (v) BERBEEER-ZT—ZTFEA="TH
BERE o

(vi) Ms. Wong Tik Tung resigned on 30 July 2010. (vi) EBRAEER=ZZ—ZTFLA=1H
BT o

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any HEZZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE "

emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2011 BEEFERREIERKRERNME (=2 —

(2010: Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Company to the THE E) - BET——Ft+ZA=1+—

directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the HIEFE - AR B8 (A 2 % 52 (A B

Company or as compensation for loss of office during the SIERTE MRS IR AR BR 2 2/) -

year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil). SERBECHEE(ZZ—TF 1 &) -
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14. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 14. BEFHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the ERAfimxmTMATER  WE(ZZ—F
Group, none (2010: one) was director of the Company whose F:—()ARREE - HEMR LXK
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 13 above. 1355 - E AR (ZZT—FF : [Ofu) A
The emoluments of the remaining five (2010: four) individuals T2 FHBT

were as follows:

2011 2010
—F——F T TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Wages and salaries and other benefits ~ T& k¥4 A KR EbiE7H 4,740 3,670
Pension fund contributions BIRS R 21 31
4,761 3,701
Their emoluments were within the following bands ®E 2 F AN T T 5 E
2011 2010
—E——F T -TF
No. of No. of

employees employees
EEAE BEAH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 77T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T & 1,500,000 7 7T 2 1
5 4
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. % - BEKRKRE

Group TEE
Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
improvements fixtures vehicles Total
HEYELEE BRREE AE k]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTET THERT FET FTHET
Cost RS
At 1 January 2010 R-_ZE—TF
—H—H 11,082 3,257 — 14,289
Additions NG — 74 — 74
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— B AR (7,878) (2,132) — (10,010)
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—TF
+=RA=+-8H 3,154 1,199 — 4,353
Acquired through acquisition @WK EHT B
of subsidiaries AR EER 706 646 3,546 4,898
Additions NE 849 182 — 1,031
Disposal HE = (88) — (88)
Classified as held for sale S8 A#{EHE (3,217) (855) = (4,072)
Exchange differences MEN =% 26 23 133 182
At 31 December 2011 NZZT——F
+=-A=+—8H 1,518 1,107 3,679 6,304
Accumulated depreciation Z:HFE :
At 1 January 2010 RZZT—TF
—H—H 9,500 2,171 — 11,671
Charge for the year rEEER 437 248 — 685
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HIB AR (7,626) (1,714) — (9,340)
At 31 December 2010 RZZT—TF
+-A=+—8 2,311 705 — 3,016
Charge for the year REFEH 888 335 370 1,593
Disposal HeE — (42) — (42)
Classified as held for sale DERFELE (2,045) (501) — (2,546)
Exchange differences bE N =5 7 2 6 15
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F
+-RB=+—H 1,161 499 376 2,036
Carrying amount BRMEE :
At 31 December 2011 NZZE——%F
+-A=+—8 357 608 3,303 4,268
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—TF
+=-—A=+—8 843 494 — 1,337
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16. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 16. MERFHEE —FKE
— GROUP

2011 2010

—E——fF —E-FF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TET FHBT

At 1 January R—H—H — =
Acquired through acquisition of BB U BT B A F)EEL

subsidiaries (Note 32) (fizE32) 559,607 —

Additions NE 21,436 —

Exchange differences bE 5 2= HH 21,062 —

At 31 December R+=—A=1+—H 602,105 —

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the interests in

the petroleum production sharing contract acquired in

relation to the acquisition of subsidiaries as detailed in note

32 was recognised as intangible assets at costs of
HK$2,946,388,000. The interests in petroleum production

sharing contract were amortised on unit of production

method. No amortisation and impairment was provided in

current year. Details of the contract as described as below:

On 22 December 2008, China Era entered into a petroleum
contract (the “Kashi Contract”) with CNPC to drilling,
exploration, exploitation and production of oil and/or natural
gas in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin in the PRC. CNPC is a
stated-owned company established in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

=4

EE——F{ —H=1—HIFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Pursuant to the Kashi Contract signed in December 2008,
China Era agrees to provide funds and apply its advanced
technology and managerial experience to cooperate with
CNPC for the development and production of crude oil and/
or natural gas in North Kashi Block on Tarim Basin in
Xinjiang, the PRC. The maximum term of the Kashi Contract
is 30 years from 1 June 2009, unless extended due to the

production period.

China Era bears all costs required for the evaluation
operations and development operations. The operating costs
incurred shall be paid by CNPC and China Era in
accordance with 51% and 49% respectively. However,
CNPC'’s portion of operating costs shall be advanced by

China Era and recovered from the production of crude oil.

Under the terms of the Kashi Contract, the evaluation costs,
development costs and operating costs are to be recovered
according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil and
investment recovery oil. Remaining oil, after cost recovery, all
applicable taxes and royalty that might apply in the PRC, is
share oil, which is apportioned between 51% by CNPC and
49% by China Era.

As at 31 December 2011, the approval of Overall
Development Program from National Development and

Reform Commission has not yet been obtained.

17. BEE (©)

BER =TT N\F+ AR ZBRTEL
TREFRRAEREES MERETERK
REBZRETPAHEESE  URFE
B BRI T RBFARREERHMS
R/ RRAR - BAEAHZHREFHRA
“TTNFERNA—BRE30F - MEEERD
8 5| B FERRER S ©

REFRAETEESRAREBZMB
FTEB B AN o FTEE A2 WO AS & PR AN % | A B O
SBERFEFRDBIZT51% & 49% © A
i PARBEENLERADMHERTH
FRBIR - WEHEERBERE -

BERTEL - FHEKA - BEERARKE
SRR ERBK A B AR RRERE A
M2 7 REE - R ER KRR 2B T A
MmME  RHPEERNMEEATERE
MBE R EAHE - AR ABAEEKPESE
R BIHD1651% K 49% ©

R-T——F+-_HA=+—H E@ERH%
BADARSERERNMUELZS G 24t
fE ©
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. BREEE)

Set out below is the summary of assets, liabilities and results TXEF R E BRI ERNER L EE

for the year recognised in the consolidated financial BEREEME  NFEAEBRETE

statements in relation to the Group’s interest in the Kashi Nz =GR :

Contract:

(@) Result for the year (@) AFEHEE
As the project was still under the evaluation period and HRNZEBEERBEE_Z—F+=A
commercial production had not yet commences for the =+ —BLIEFEMERTEREER - &
year ended 31 December 2011, there is no result REFEELE QUGS E2ERR
recognised in the consolidated statement of RIEFER AR -

comprehensive income.

(b) Assets and liabilities by BEKREE
2011 2010
—E-—-F5 —ZT-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE N&ERE 4,080 —
Exploration and evaluation assets R R B E 602,105 —
Intangible assets B AE 2,946,388 —
Deferred tax assets BEEFIBEE 77,481 —
Current assets MENEE 370,020 =
Current liabilities REAE (373,192) —
Non-current liabilities ERENAE (51,240) —
Net assets BESE 3,575,642 —
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. BELEE (&)
(c) Commitments (c) 7
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Capital commitments: B AN EYE
Contracted but not provided EETAE RS
for in respect of T 5 BIEE A
— Exploration and evaluation — WIRREHEF X
expenditures 259,350 —
18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. AMIB ARz
The Company
PN

2011 2010
—g——& —2-2%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETARD - AR 2,928,527 192,400
Amounts due from subsidiaries D NG B 1,178,222 322,062
4,106,749 514,462
Less: Impairment loss R R EEE (515,633) (514,444)
3,591,116 18

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and in substance a part of the Company’s interests in the

subsidiaries in the form of quasi-equity loans.

EUHEARRALEERR 28 B8
B ERARRNHEB AR s (CAERER
BERER) 2 —8 -
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. RIMIB AR 2% (&)
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 AAFIN—ZE——E+=-_B=+—Hz=*x
December 2011 are as follows: EMBARFBET
Country/
Form of place of Country/ Issued and
business incorporation/  place of Principal fully paid Percentage of
Name structure establishment  operation activities share capital interests held
AR,
RIER/ geExR/ BRTR
NAER EXERYA  BE 12 TEXH BERE ERERADL
Directly Indirectly
EE Cf:3
China Energy Resources Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment Ordinary share 100% =
Holdings Ltd company Holding HK$1
PAERERERAR ARAR Bt &g RERR EEK
1AL
Hon Po (China) Catering Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Sell of food Ordinary shares = 100%
Management Limited company and beverage  HK$10,000
EE(PE)RRERERAR BRAR B Bh HERM il
BREER 10,000/ 7T
Hon Po International Limited Limited liability  British Virgin Hong Kong Investment Ordinary shares 100% =
company Islands holding US$151
EEAREBR AR BRAR RBRAES &g RERR EEK
151K 7T
Ocean Grace Investments Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Operation of Ordinary shares = 100%
Limited company a Chinese HK$2
Restaurant
EARERBAR ARAR Bt &g gehshE EEK
28T
Totalbuild Investments Group Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment Ordinary shares 100% =
(Hong Kong) Limited company holding US$1
HEIREKE (FE)BRAA ARAR Bt &g RERR EEK
17T
China Era Energy Power Limited liability ~ Hong Kong The People’s QOil and gas Ordinary shares = 100%
Investment (Hong Kong) company Republic of exploration HK$1
Limited China
PEERERRE (BE)ARAR ARAR Bt REARANE OhRER LRR1AT - 100%
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19. RENTAL DEPOSITS AND OTHER DEPOSITS 19. HERERHEMITE - ~5EH
— THE GROUP
These represent rental deposits and utilities deposits. ZEFeEHeRE RARARBES -
20. DEFERRED TAXATION 20. EEBIIE
(a) The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities in (@) REEHBMRARZELTHE(E
the consolidated statement of financial position are as =)/ BEHERSHNT
follows:
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities arising from: RERIE(EE) BEELES !

Accelerated
Exploration depreciation

costs allowances Tax losses Total
BERAA  IERTERE BIAEE e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET THET FHET FTET
At1January 2010 and  RZ-E—ZF — 568 (515) 53
31 December 2010 —A—Bk
—T-TF
+-A=t+—H
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y& A 7
(Note 32) (Pt 32) (70,474) — — (70,474)
Credits for the year FEHER (4,333) — — (4,333)
Exchange differences fEHERE (2,674) — — (2,674)
At 31 December 2011 RN_T——F
+=-A=+—H (77,481) 568 (515) (77,428)
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20. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

(&) (Continued)

For the purpose of presentation in consolidated

(b)

statement of financial position, certain deferred tax

assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is

20. EEFIE (&)

(@)

(#&)

HEAMBHRARERENOME - &
TELEHBREERABD KN - 5t
ERFBRAKRM AT BN IBAE

the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial BT
reporting purposes:
2011 2010
=F——F T TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE B (77,481) —
Deferred tax liabilities BEHEAE 53 53
(77,428) 53
Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) RERELEHREEE

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of approximate
HK$59,424,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$33,199,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the entity. The
tax losses will not expire under the current tax

legislation.
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21.

22,

INVENTORIES 21. F&
The Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —ZTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FABT
Food and beverages B Rk 9,754 5,516
TRADE RECEIVABLES 22, FEUERR
Customers are usually offered a credit period ranging from BE—MRESZEERA—Z=HATE -
one to three months. An ageing analysis of trade receivables RZE——FR-_T—TF+_A=+—
as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 is as follows: A2 FEW R RBRE AT T
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—g——f —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET TR
Current to 3 months BNEf= =& A 9 41

All trade receivables are neither individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired as there was no recent history of
default and relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

B B AR 50192 B R B ;e KR E B 7R
TRE BhHREAEE 2B SH
B RIFEN A B B M R S8R A 7
REBELR EEEHEGCEARZER
BRIFHRERE FRREEREVEE
RE(RBRBERIBAR /A BBKRE -
REEN BpL % L iE s A E R m o
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING

23. HFEEZEMEE

The Group and Company

AEERARAH
2011 2010
e —24
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FABT
Trading securities listed in Hong Kong, E’\E,%Lmz
at market value 5,487 29,486
Cash balance in a security account —_ 191
5,487 29,677
For investments which have been suspended from trading as REFRDBETEEEYIEE  EATES
at year end, the fair value was measured with reference to BRETEBSEN Y SETS BT HBE
the quoted price of the last dealing date before suspension AR EERAEE ALY B SR
of trade and other available information consider appropriate o EET sEE IS Y EREL A

by the Directors. The carrying amounts of these suspended
investments are approximately HK$5,332,000 (2010: Nil).
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24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24, HihEWRIE - FIE€REMAR
PREPAYMENTS
The Group
2011 2010
i —T-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Other receivables, deposits and H b Uk zRIE « 515 MTE I8
prepayments 25,950 45,089
Refundable deposits — AR EE] &
Mr. Wang Jian Guo (note) — FER LA () 20,725 20,725
46,675 65,814
Less: Provision for impairment: R ERE
— Refundable deposit (note) — AR & (W?) (20,725) (18,239)
— Other receivables, deposits — B REWGRIE - EZE
and prepayments RMIEME AI,E (11,883) —
(32,608) (18,239)
14,067 47,575
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24.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Note:

On 24 September 2007, Mr. Wang Jian Guo (“Mr. Wang”), an
independent third party and Joy Even International Limited (“Joy
Even”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into the agreement in
relation to the proposed acquisition of the 51% equity interest in
each of the target companies, Bu Tuo County Wu Zhou Minerals
Limited Liability Company (17 #55% FuMEE A R = E /A7) and Hui Li
County Wan Feng Mining Limited Liability Company (& I % & £
% AR & E 22 7)) of an aggregate consideration of RMB498 million
(equivalent of HK$516 million) (the “Agreement”). Both companies
are limited liability companies established in the PRC. The principal
activities of both companies are in the development of mines in the
PRC. A refundable deposit of HK$20,725,000 was paid (equivalent
to RMB20,000,000) to Mr. Wang upon signing of the agreement. On
31 July 2008, the Company executed the Deed of termination
regarding the proposed acquisitions, whereby subject to the return
of the refundable deposit, both parties shall be released and
discharged from their respective obligations under the Agreement.
On 10 March 2011, Joy Even issued a Writ of Summons against Mr
Wang claiming the principal and interest on the refundable deposits.
As at 31 December 2011, all of the refundable deposits were
impaired and a provision for impairment of HK$2,486,000 (2010:
HK$2,695,000) is charged to profit or loss for the year.
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25. LOAN RECEIVABLES

25. EWER

The Group and Company

REBRARAQF
2011 2010
=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FETT
Loan receivables — EUE K
unrelated parties (note) — #ERFEB AL () — 51,941
— 51,941
Note: Kzt

The balances at 31 December 2010 represented loan receivables
from independent third parties, which were unsecured, interest-
bearing at 0.5% to 1% per month and repayable within 1 year. Of this
amount, HK$37.1 million was loan receivable from SMI Publishing
Group Limited (“SMI”), a company listed on SEHK, but trading of this
company’ shares was suspended from 28 April 2005 and up to the
date of this report. The loan receivable from SMI Publishing Group
Limited is secured by a personal guarantee of a third party. Another
HK$14.8 million (2010: HK$14.8 million) was loan receivable from
Birmingham International Holding Limited (“Birmingham”), a
company listed on SEHK. The loan receivable from Birmingham
International Holding Limited is unsecured. During the year ended
31 December 2011, all of the loan receivables from these companies
were impaired as they were unable to repay the principle and

interest when the amounts fall due.

Up to the date of this report, the Group has not been able to obtain
viable repayment proposal from SMI and Birmingham. The Group is
now actively considering to take appropriate legal action to secure

the Group’s position.

R-ZZE—THE+-A=1+—8 - ZEHRIEREE
MEZHZER  MZERBREER - REA
0SEZ1EAHBRAR—FREE - ZERE
E - 37,100,000 T A W E X H RS BEA R
RRAITEEZENZER - AR ABRA ETA
7 ER-EERFNA-+N\BREEARRE
B ZARZBRHBEEEE - BREZEDLR
SEARARZERU—BE=FHOEAERE
# o 5 514,800,000/ JL( = T — T F ¢
14,800,000 7% 7T ) 7% FE U (R BA SR IR BRIZ AR B IR 12
Bl (RBERFT ET 2 AR]) 2 B3 o EUIRIARREIR
BRIEIRAR A A (AR ) 2 ERTHEIK R -
%%:ﬁ—*¢+:ﬂz+*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ~mﬁa
FERRIZAERKERBEHURE - BZEAR
REENFIBRIHZ B EBEAS RFAS

BEAHREAH  AEBRELEXRARDE
HRA[1T 2 BHGER - ARER ERIGE BERIUE
ERERTE) - SAKEZRRERS R BRE -
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26.

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

ACCRUALS

An ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group as at 31

December 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

26. FE{TBRFX -
=]

HtENE

AEER TR _F—F

RIE K EETR

F£+—H

= +— B2 EMERFERROITOT

The Group
AEH
2011 2010
=F——F —TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade payables A BRFX
Current to 3 months BIEf==1{EH 5,803 5,213
Over 1 year —F A E 2,946 2,946
Total trade payables FE SRR SR 4R %R 8,749 8,159
Other payables and accruals H At FE {4 7R1E R SRR
Current portion: BNHAER 4 -
Exploration and evaluation B R R w A
cost payables FERT AR 362,585 —
Other payables and accruals H A FE A FR I8 R e AT R 23,608 30,132
386,193 30,132
Non-current portion: FERNERER S ¢
Exploration and evaluation WIE KA
cost payables FETBR AR 51,240 —
51,240 —
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HEz—F——

+=—=

Fr-A=1T—HIEFE

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED

(a)

27. B EABEATR—BRER

COMPANIES AND A SHAREHOLDER 15
Pursuant to section 161B of the Companies Ordinance, (@) REBEARIEHE161BIF @ HaZIEHE
the amounts disclosed hereunder represent amounts Bz e FIREIWBEAR ZFIE - M
due from related companies in which directors of ARRETHBARZEZREFHF
certain subsidiaries of the Company have held BEmiEn
beneficial interests:
The Group e
Metropolis
Harbour
View
Bestcase Dragongem Jing Hua Twin Star Chinese
Name of related Hong Kong  Resources (Allied) Investments Cuisine
companies Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Total
BEERE EZEEAER ZEMR) BERE RRH
BEARER ARAR ARAR ARAR BRAR BARAR Ham
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THT THT THT THT
Balance EER
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%5
+-B=+—-H 88 1,102 1,242 1,395 854 4,681
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-TF
+=—A=1+—-H 779 1,139 1,137 1,304 8,091 12,450
Maximum outstanding FRNERE
during the year BEHE 779 1,139 1,242 1,395 8,091 12,646

The directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company
who have held beneficial interests of Bestcase Hong
Kong Limited, Dragongem Resources Limited, Jing
Hua (Allied) Limited, and Metropolis Harbour View
Chinese Cuisine Limited are namely Chan Nun Chiu,
Lim Mai Tak, Grace, Cheung To Seng, Ng Wing Po and
She Hing Chiu.

The directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company
who have held beneficial interests of Twin Star
Investments Limited are namely She Hing Chiu and
Cheung To Seng.

The amounts due from/to related companies are
unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.

(b)

ZIS"ﬂZE:FW%“ﬂEP J‘S’\Egé

BERRAR - BZEERERA
REE( ﬁﬁ/m\)ﬁﬁﬁ T&%@Hﬁﬁﬁé

NAFEERERD CEERMRER -
MERE - RELE - RKRRARED -

ARBZETHERARS  REER
BERRRAAFBEER %ﬁnZé%ﬁ‘jm
BN REE

FEY, RN BB A B RIE R
REREENKER -
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27.

28.

29.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED
COMPANIES AND A SHAREHOLDER (Continued)

(c) The amount due to a shareholder is unsecured, interest
free and is repayable after 1 July 2013.

PROVISION FOR LEGAL CLAIMS

On 1 April 2009, Sican Petroleum Plc (the “Plaintiff”) issued
a Writ of Summons against China Era Energy Power
Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“China Era”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, and several other parties
(collectively called the “Defendants”) claiming an interest in
the petroleum contract awarded to China Era and its
cooperation partner in PRC on 22 December 2008 for
exploration and development of the oil and gas blocks in
Xinjiang Province, the PRC, pursuant to an agreement dated
18 May 2007 allegedly entered into between the Plaintiff and
the China Era.

According to the legal opinion issued by the legal counsel, it
is estimated that the amount of damages liable by the
Defendants would not exceed HK$5 million. The Group has
provided for the potential damages of HK$5 million as of 31
December 2011.

On 20 December 2011, the Plaintiff and Defendants entered
into a settlement agreement and agreed to settle all claims,
demands, and disputes rose out. The claims were
subsequently settled on 3 January 2012.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Pursuant to the acquisition of subsidiaries as detailed in note
32, the Company issued Tranche 1 zero coupon convertible
notes with principal amount of HK$2,558,000,000 with
maturity date falling 30 years from the date of issue on 3
January 2011.
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27.

28.

29.
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29.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The convertible notes do not bear any interest and are freely
transferable, provided that where the convertible notes are
intended to be transferred to a connected person (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Group (other than the associates
of the noteholder) such transfer shall comply with the
requirements under the Listing Rules and/or requirements

imposed by the Stock Exchange, if any.

The noteholders may at any time during the 30 years from the
issue date convert the whole or part of the principal amount
of the convertible notes into new ordinary shares of the
Company at the conversion price of HK$0.168 per share,
provided that (i) no conversion rights attached to the
convertible notes may be exercised, to the extent that
following such exercise, a holder of the convertible notes and
parties acting in concert with it, taken together, will directly or
indirectly, control or be interested in 30% or more of the
entire issued shares of the Company (or in such percentage
of the issued share capital of the Company as may from time
to time be specified in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers as being the level for triggering a mandatory
general offer); and (ii) no holder of the convertible notes shall
exercise the conversion right attached to the convertible
notes held by such holders if immediately after such
conversion, the public float of the shares fall below the
minimum public float requirement stipulated under Rule 8.08
of the Listing Rules as required by the Stock Exchange. The
conversion price of HK$0.168 per share is subject to
adjustment for consolidation, sub-division or re-classification
of shares, capital reduction, rights issues and other events
which have diluting effects on the issued share capital of the

Company.

29.

AR ()
ABMBRRETHERIEHAERE  EHA
BEREREZTRESEABEALN
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 29. ATEREE®)

The fair values of the liability component and the equity BEPS RERBD 2 AFBEREZEITA
component were determined at the issuance of the BRREERET - AEHS 22 FEE(E
convertible notes. The fair value of the liability component, FERIEREBE) FERARSIETRBRER 2
included in the non-current liabilities, was calculated using a MEHNEFE - BELP 2EBENER
market interest rate of equivalent non-convertible notes. The 1%+ MAEAZEREFTHARE R R
effective interest rate of the liabilities component is 11% and HBR o AR EIR 2 im0 H (KT AT AR
the interest expenses will be charged to income statement ERANTEEEAGIH S A TFEECER)
over the loan periods. The equity component of the FTABB A ZERANRFRRARRKRER
convertible notes, representing the difference of the fair value {4 o

of the convertible notes and the fair value of the liabilities
component, was included in the owner’s equity and denoted

as convertible notes reserves.

The movement of the principal amount, liability component ARBREREAERE  BENS KiERHSD
and equity component of the convertible notes are as follows: ZEET

Carrying amount
AR E
Liability Equity
component component

BEHD D

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FA&TT
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZF—HF—H -
and 1 January 2011 —E—TF+ZA=+—HRK
—T——F—-H—H — =
Issued during the period BN B 21T 117,316 2,618,811
Converted into ordinary shares during HAN B i
the period RETBER (28,385) (613,578)
Interest expenses =N 10,618 —
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F+_-_A=+—H 99,549 2,005,233
The convertible notes with outstanding principal amount of R-ZE—F+_-_A=+—H " fa[BiKR=E
HK$1,958,670,000 as at 31 December 2011 have maturity B 27 AREERESHEA1,958,670,00078 JC *
date falling 30 years from the date of issue on 3 January mEHEAZTRBIZE—F—A=AR)
2011. EEHm=1%2ZH -
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A
2011 2010
—2--F —T-%F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
R EE Ex-c} RingE i)
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THL
Authorised: B
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each w—RA—RASREE0.05
At 1 January BT 2 TR 25,000,000,000 1,250,000 10,000,000,000 500,000
Increase in authorised EAETEBRA (B (i)
share capital (note (ii)) — — 15,000,000,000 750,000
At 31 December R+-—A=1+—H 25,000,000,000 1,250,000 25,000,000,000 1,250,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SREE0.05 T2 LBk
At 1 January ®—HA—H 4,353,680,000 217,684  3,628,680,000 181,434
Issue of shares upon conversion of — REHA[HRZEE
convertible notes (note (i) BT B 1n (HIRE () 3,567,440,000 178,372 = —
Issue of shares for cash (note (iii) ~ EFTRRH ARRE © (ML (i) - — 725,000,000 36,250
At 31 December W+=-A=+—H 7,921,120,000 396,056  4,353,680,000 217,684
Notes: Bt -
(i) On 5 January 2011, the convertible notes in the principal 0) R—ZE——F—HFHERB  X&8E A

amount of HK$312,480,000 were converted into fully paid
shares at a conversion price of HK$0.168 per share,

1,860,000,000 shares were issued upon conversion.

On 17 March 2011, the convertible notes in the principal
amount of HK$8,400,000 were converted into fully paid shares
at a conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, 50,000,000

shares were issued upon conversion.

312,480,000/ T 2 AI# IR 1R - &K 1%
REREG  RMEREIR0168E T
RATBRBREBRERBRE KARET
1,860,000,000 A% 5 °

R-ZT——&=A++tB X&8EAH
8,400,000 T Z Al MR Z1E - EH KA
BRI - RIREAER0.168HETT - B
ARRERE L BRE - KNAREAT
50,000,000 f& A& 15 °
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(M)

(i)

128 | ANN

Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

On 27 April 2011, the convertible notes in the principal amount
of HK$111,289,920 were converted into fully paid shares at a
conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, 662,440,000 shares

were issued upon conversion.

On 22 September 2011, the convertible notes in the principal
amount of HK$10,920,000 were converted into fully paid
shares at a conversion price of HK$0.168 per share,

65,000,000 shares were issued upon conversion.

On 10 November 2011, the convertible notes in the principal
amount of HK$122,640,000 were converted into fully paid
shares at a conversion price of HK$0.168 per share,

730,000,000 shares were issued upon conversion.

On 20 December 2011, the convertible notes in the principal
amount of HK$33,600,000 were converted into fully paid
shares at a conversion price of HK$0.168 per share,

200,000,000 shares were issued upon conversion.

On 3 December 2010, the Board proposed to increase the
authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$500,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 Shares to
HK$1,250,000,000 divided into 25,000,000,000 Shares of
HK$0.05 each by the creation of additional 15,000,000,000
Shares. The Capital Increase was passed by the Shareholders
at the EGM on 20 December 2010. Details of information were
set out in the Company’s circular and announcement dated on
3 December 2010 and 20 December 2010.

UAL REPORT 2011 %#k

30.

MRS (48)

ez

(0]

(i)

(%)

(#)

R-ZE——FENB-—++tH AEHEA
111,289,920 8 7t Z AT AR 1R - R 2
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10,920,000/ 7L 2 AT AR R I% - LR A
Bk AMERER0168HBT - X
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30.

31.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)  On 22 February 2010, the Company raised approximately
HK$317,905,000, after expenses by issuing 725,000,000
shares by placements at subscription prices of HK$0.45 each
to provide additional working capital of the Group, resulting in
additional amount of approximately HK$36,250,000 and
HK$281,655,000 (net of expenses HK$8,345,000) standing in
the share capital and share premium account respectively. All
shares issued by the Company rank pari passu with the then

existing shares in all respects.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the terms of the share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted conditionally by the Company on 28 January 2002
and amendments on 2 November 2006, the board of
directors of the Company may, at its discretion, grant options
to the directors, employees and consultants of the Company

and its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares of the Company.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’

approval in a general meeting.

30.

31.

& NEP)

Kz - ()

(i) RE=ZE—ZFF-_A=+=H £AQEEB
LB E R IZRBEETR045ETTEIT

725,000,000 % A% 14 5 & %7317,905,000
PIT (BREAZ18) « LAAZ S IR
BEES  BERARRDEEERD B
AN#736,250,0007 7T K& 281,655,000 77T
MK 7% 8,345,000 7T) ° AARIEITZ
FrAERMES HAEERRERNERR
FiEss o

BRETE

BREARAR-_ZEZ_F—-—A-_tN\AF
R ER A0 2 BE AR R =1 281 ([ 5T &1 1) 1R R
REZBERF+—AZHELZERT K
ARREFGAMNBRAARR R RENE AR
ZEE BEERBERREBREARBAR
RAEZBAD

REZ A EARRRRITAIRF 2 RITER
Wiz FIRE A SFRNZEERIEETE
B AR REMNEBERERZRTERMNGZ
30% ° fEfEB B I FRRE — PR H 2 B
BEVERRRAE LSRIREAE -
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
associates are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
option granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within 12 months period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during the period commencing
immediately after the date on which the option is deemed to
be granted and accepted and expiring on a date to be
notified by the directors to each grantee which shall not be
more than 10 years from the date on which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted. According to the
Scheme, there is no provision requiring a minimum holding
period before an option may be exercised. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance on grant of

an option under the Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant;

and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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31.

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No shares were granted and exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

The share option scheme expired on 28 January 2012.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 22 January 2009, the Company, Totalbuild Investments
Holdings Group Limited (the “Vendor”), Mr. Wang Guoju, as
guarantor for the Vendor, China Era, as a guarantor for the
Vendor, entered into the agreement (“the Agreement”) in
relation to proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest in the
Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Totalbuild Investments”). Totalbuild Investments holds the
entire issued share capital of China Era which has entered
into the petroleum contract with China National Petroleum
Corporation (“CNPC”) as mentioned in Note 17. The
Company paid the refundable deposits amounted to
HK$804,000,000 as at 31 December 2010 to China Era, and
part of which has been utilised by China Era as working

capital.

On 3 January 2011, all the conditions of the Acquisition of the
first designated area of the Akemomu Gas Field (the “First
Designated Area”) and the entire issued share capital (the
“Acquisition”) of Totalbuild Investments and its subsidiaries
(the “Totalbuild Investments Group”) have been fulfilled.

31.

32.

B8 ()
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R-ZBEZNFE—F-+—-H ' AQF &
B EERERAR(TES]) « TEE (fF
REAZERN) RFEFRUHERERZ
ERAREZZWEHAREER (F8)F
BRA A AR E |) Z 100% A& 74 # 25
S iBE(TZBE]) - AR ERHAPH
FREBEFTRA - MPBEFREFRE
ABRRAREERA((FEGHER]) ]
N7 EBEH(RME7ATEE) - ARRE
R-TE-—ZTE+_A=t+—HATEER
{4 7] R [Bl3% 4 804,000,000 7 7T © EH —
BHOEBEPRFREAELEES -

R-ZT——F—A=A RzEARH
ZEEEWE(FE-—EEHE]) kKA
RERENBAR(HARESER]) 22
MEBITRA(TKWEEER]) 26 KB %
HFERZR °

CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED +BaEmariaraz | 131



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/T\

B IR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2011

=4

z=

EFoE——FTZA=1+—HIEFE

32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

As a result of completion of the Acquisition sale share and
the First Designated Area, the Tranche | consideration in the
sum of HK$2,558,000,000 was paid by the Company with
Tranche | convertible notes of HK$2,558,000,000 at the
conversion price of HK$0.168 each, to the Vendor including
the shortfall amount of HK$1,279,000,000 which was
deposited with an escrow agent pursuant to the Agreement.
The sale loan consideration payable by the Company in the
sum of HK$906,299,000 was satisfied by deducting the
deposit in the sum of HK$804,000,000 and with the balance
of HK$102,299,000 to be settled in cash or otherwise agreed.

According to the Agreement, the shortfall amount of
HK$1,279,000,000 convertible notes should only be released
to the Vendor upon the Company having received a written
certificate issued by the competent evaluator confirming that
the First Designated Area be evaluated on the basis of
unrisked economic evaluation within the six years period
from 1 June 2009 (the “Relevant Period”).

In addition, according to the Agreement, the Group is not
entitled to the benefits and interests of the second
designated area in the Akemomu Gas Field. A separate
shareholders’ approval will be required for the Acquisition of
the second designated area by issuing additional convertible
notes of not more than HK$7,442,000,000 subjected to the
fulfillment of certain conditions as stipulated in the Agreement

within the Relevant Period.
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32. WEMBAR @)
Details of the net assets and liabilities acquired as at date of REEEBE - PRk EER B BRIFE
acquisition were: FIBR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FATT
Net assets acquired BEEEETE
Property, plant and equipment e 4,898
Exploration and evaluation assets EER MR B 559,607
Intangible assets EBARE 2,946,388
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEEE 70,474
Other receivables, deposits and Hip el siIE « iBe &
prepayments TEfFRIE 1,193
Cash and cash equivalents RekERRE 599,412
Other payables and accruals H{th &~ 2008 & B 5T 08 (539,546)
3,642,426
Total fair value of consideration transfer: EEREZATEERE
Fair value of convertible notes ARER 2 A FEE 2,736,127
Set-off with deposits for acquisition of H SH U B B 8 R )
subsidiaries 2¥%® 804,000
Consideration to be satisfied in cash LIBeX M 2RE 102,299
3,642,426
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEHEEEZRESRAFE
Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired B UWEHE S RESZEY 599,412
Since the acquisition date, Totalbuild Investments Group has BUEBERE  REAKREEBERRTE
contributed HK$ nil and a loss of HK$7,394,000 to the 7B IC M B8 7,394,000 B T E AL E 2 Wz
Group’s revenue and profit or loss. KBz o
The acquisition-related cost of HK$17,853,000 has been U BE AR R RK 217,853,000/ 7T 2 4 VERI X -
expensed and included in administrative expenses of 2010. Wt AT —FFTHRAST
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33. RESERVES i
The company /N
Convertible
Issued  Contributed Share notes Accumulated
capital surplus premium reserve losses Total
] - WBBEE
BEETREA BERREER R &M i RitER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TABL AT TAT TET THAL AT
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(7 () GEW) (7E(c)
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-E-ZFF—f—A
2k 181,434 91,349 853,146 — (473,893) 652,036
Total comprehensive income AEERENEESR
for the year — — — (59,071) (59,071)
Issue of share capital (Note 30)  47A& A (Ff3F 30) 36,250 — 281,655 — — 317,905
Balance at 31 December 2010 ~ R=ZT—ZF
TZR=t-Bz&H 217,684 91,349 1,134,801 — (532,964) 910,870
Total comprehensive income TEERENESH
for the year — — — — (93,414) (93,414)
Issue of convertible notes RIREEHB A Al
upon acquisition of BMRRER
subsidiaries — — — 2,618,811 — 2,618,811
Issue of shares upon RERITRREER
conversion of convertible 172 B (BizE30)
notes (Note 30) 178,372 = 463,591 (613,578) = 28,385
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZB——F+-f
=t+—HZ&EH 396,056 91,349 1,598,392 2,005,233 (626,378) 3,464,652
(a) The contributed surplus represents the difference (a) EBEHB/BRAEHBBE-_ZZ_F—H

between the nominal value of the shares of the

Company issued in exchange for the issued share

capital of the subsidiaries and the value of the

underlying assets of the subsidiaries pursuant to the

Group Reorganisation on 17 January 2002.
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33. RESERVES (Continued)

34.

The company (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company under certain
circumstances. It represents the excess of the nominal

value of shares issued by the Company.

The convertible notes reserve represents the equity
component of the convertible notes issued (i.e. option

to convert the note into share capital).

EACACD)

RRTF (&)

(b)

REFASHERRVAZHE - Bk
EBREETER TR ARRK
R BROEBHEBHARREHTR
EEZ 2 -

HRERERERECBEITIRERER
2D (AR BRBREERA L
BIERE) -

COMMITMENTS 34. %
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REHEERIE
The Group leases certain of its restaurants, staff RNEERE D AT R S H A HEE
quarters, offices and warehouses under non- RETEE BIFE HAEKE
cancellable operating lease arrangements with E - BHAE—ZERAFFE - R=Z
remaining lease terms ranging from one to five years. ——FRZZF-ZTFFTZRA="+—
At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had total B ANEERBER TIFEHE 2T
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AR S04 2 RRFERT SR &
operating leases falling due as follows: HBER
2011 2010
—E-—F —ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Within one year R—FR 4,931 4,234
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_-_FZERF (BIEERERE) 47 698
4,978 4,932
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34. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Capital commitments

34. AEE)

(b) BEAEE
Group Company
B 3L KT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g--£  -“T-TF  Z§--F "T-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FERT TET FERL

Commitments for the ol field A BRARS
exploration services: ARIE
— contracted for but not
provided

— BETOHERIEL AR

259,350 = — =

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35. BEALRS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, RRAREHEBRARNGAEAT ZHMER
which are related parties of the Company, have been AETZRSERGERE R W&
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this NPT 572 B o 7N 5 [ B HL 1 B 58 A 3

note. Details of transactions between the Group and other
related parties are disclosed below. During the year and in

the ordinary course of business, the Group had the following

TZRSHBERBENT - EFRRNAEE
ZHBEBBRED  AEBEEAEBEK
BRRIZHBEATAEUTEARS :

material transactions with related parties which are not

members of the Group:
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

35. BEALRF (&)

Key management personnel remuneration FTEEEAEME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, BTAEBEIEEEABZHE (BERAR
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as RAIEEXNZ &) BENGE B HREK
disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements. MizE13
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Rental expenses paid to related BN EERARESRX
companies (note (i)) (P& (i) 4,354 4,160
Sales of food to related companies MEE A R E R
(note (ii)) (B2 (i) 27,189 19,377

(i)  The rental expenses were paid to:

(@) N.W.P. Investments Limited (“N.W.P. Investments”),
which is controlled indirectly by a discretionary
trust of which Mr. Ng Wing Po’s wife and certain
of his children are beneficiaries. Mr. Ng is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company
and a director of N.W.P. Investment. The rental
expenses were based on the agreement signed

with the Group.

(b) Hon Po Investment Limited of which directors of
certain subsidiaries of the Company have a
beneficial interest. The rental expenses were
based on the tenancy agreements signed with the

Group.

(iy MEERAXINT:

(a) XEREBEBERAB(KEE
BDHRKRELEZETRE
TFRREEAZ 2GR
BRAEH - RELERBARRET
MBARZES X RKKE
BrEF e JRENA
REBFTERR] 2 Wt & o

(b) ZEEREBRRDA  HARF]
ETHBARCEFTHEER
R fﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬂi’i
Bl < HE MR E
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+=—=

35. REL

(ii)

138 | ANN

B IR MR

ended 31 December 2011
FHZA=1+—HIEFE

ATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Group has the sales transactions with the following
related companies during the year ended 31 December
2011 and 2010.

35. BEALRS &)

BE_Z——FR_ZZFF+_A
=t+—HIEFE  AEEGETSIR
BALTETHERS -

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

Bestcase Hong Kong Limited BEEBEERAA 3,399 3,084

Dragongem Development Limited EZEZRRERAR 5,352 5,840

Jing Hua (Allied) Limited RE(ME)ARAH 6,726 6,167

Twin Star Investments Limited HEXLEBRAA 5,040 2,258
Metropolis Harbour View Chinese SRETHR AR

Cuisine Limited 6,672 2,028

27,189 19,377

As stated in note 37, Metropolis Harbour View Chinese
Cuisine Limited (“the Disposal Company”) was the
subsidiary of the Group until 9 September 2010, the
date of disposal, the Disposal Company is disposed to
Speedy Fortune Limited of which directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company have a beneficial interest.
After the date of disposal, the Disposal Company is the

related company of the Group.

As stated in note 27, directors of certain subsidiaries of
the Company have a beneficial interest in Twin Star
Investments Limited. As a result, the company is the

related company of the Group.

UAL REPORT 2011 %#k

BANHTEI7 AT - RIRH AR A A
(HERARDEE-ZT-TFAAN
BHERR) RIERAERZHE
AR HEARDHETRERRA
A ZABAARAETHEARZ
ExpEERER - NHERHE -
HERRARKER ZMEAQT

AN 27 Bl - AR R BE T B
RAZEENEEREFRAFTESR
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36.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF A DISPOSAL 36. PEARKFHEZHEARZEE
COMPANY CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE HEE
In December 2011 the board resolved to dispose of Ocean RZT——F+-/ EFLRFLEL
Grace Investments Limited (“OGIL”) to Speedy Fortune FIREBRAB(EXED FTELE=AK
Limited, an independent third party. OGIL engaged in the BERRQR EFAREANETHERESE
Chinese restaurant business in Hong Kong. 7% o
The disposal will be subject to the approval of the HEZEASBRRABRREREI RS Eib#E
shareholders at the EGM and is not completed at the date of & FO{EE - BRAIRE BEMIARTA ©
this report. The following major classes of assets and BEBBEBCATEEHBERERNEGEH
liabilities relating to the operation have been classified as BAIRARAD ERFHELE ©
held for sale in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
HK$’000
FHExT
Assets classified as held for sale PEABELEEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B RFE 1,526
Rental Deposit Heke 759
Inventories FE a7
Trade and other receivables JE W % L th FE WK IR 300
Cash and cash equivalents Re hZERIRE 2,709
5,711
Liabilities classified as held for sale PERFELHERS
Trade and other payables FEAT R E b FE A 3R I8 4,002
The disposal does not constitute a discontinued operation as HEFBW MEKNERILEEHES - T1A
it does not represent a major line of business or geographical RUEPMRERER —EHEZEBHEEED
area of operation. H[ER o
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37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 37. HE—EMELQF

R-ZE—ZTFNANB  AEBRKES
BRARLEEMBRRASRFERRLF
ARBETHERAR ZERERNZ R AT

BE S -

On 9 September 2010, the Group disposed of its subsidiary,
namely Metropolis Harbour View Chinese Cuisine Limited to
Speedy Fortune Limited of which directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company have the beneficial interests.

The net assets of the disposed subsidiary at the date of ZRHENBARNEE AR EEFE
disposal were as follows: m :

Year ended 31 December 2010 BE-Z—ZF+-A=+—HLEFE
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HK$'000 HK$'000
F&TT FET
Assets disposed of: BEHEEE -
Property, plant and equipment M - B MRS 670
Rental deposits and other deposits el REMITS 4,608
Inventories FE 265
Trade receivables FEULBR X 7
Other receivables, deposits and EaElEIE - ST Rk
prepayments TEftFIE 2,177
Bank balances and cash IRITRABERS 3,209
11,006
Liabilities disposed of: BHEARE :
Trade payables FEASBR 5K (285)
Other payables and accruals H {th & {5 2008 & B 5T 308 (6,369)
Amounts due to a related company et —RIREE A R FE (7,699)
Bank loans RITE R (2,000)
Provision for long service payments REARRTS S B (98)
(16,451)
Net liabilities BEFE (5,445)
Satisfied by: ATRFIAE AT -
Total consideration wRE (4,410)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B ARz W (9,855)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZHSRASRE
Cash consideration received BWRZRERE 4,410
Bank balances and cash disposed off B HERTEBR LIRS (3,209)
1,201
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

— To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

—  To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

— To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the

Group’s risk management capability.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company only, comprising share
capital and reserves of HK$396,056,000 (2010:
HK$217,684,000) and HK$3,047,334,000 (2010:
HK$687,974,000) respectively as at 31 December 2011.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities. The Group has not

adopted any formal dividend policy.

EXEREE
AEMEREAZERA

— REAKEEFELE  BERBRR
REMESETH A B K = 5 F

fm
— XBARBEZEBEMRER R

REERABAEE 2 BB EERE
H e

WN-Z——%+-A=+—0 A&£@EE
AEBEBREAAABEEABRERE - &
HR B HE IR AR K (& 4 5 751 396,056,000 7% 7T

Z— T — T §:217,684,000% T ) &
3,047,334,000% w( = T — T F:
687,974,000 7T) °

SR ETER S E iReT RE A B AR
NEREBEARBRERER - ELE
REBRRREHREZ BRI REE 2 RHK
B2 R/ERERYE - BITRBB AN EE
N RAKERERE  RAEARAI R
BRARBEIERERS - AEEYERAE
AT IE S B ©
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its

equity investments in other entities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
in the normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price

risk.

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management

policies and practices described below.

(@) Creditrisk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Except for the
financial assets held for trading, the refundable
deposits and the loan receivables that were further
explained in note 23, 24 and 25 respectively, the Group
principal financial assets are bank balances placed
with reputable banks. Given their high credit standing,
management does not expect any credit risk exposure
for those bank balances. For credit exposures to
customers, Group management has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. Sales to restaurant
customers were settled in cash or through credit cards.
For credit exposures associated with the refundable
deposits and loan receivables, Group management
had assessed the credit quality of the debtors, taking
into account their financial position, their business
developments and other factors. In addition, the Group
ensures that the amount of the loan is within the limit set
by the Group.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity dates of all financial liabilities are within
one year as at the end of each reporting period, except
for certain other payable and convertible notes as
disclosed in note 26 and 29 related to acquisition of
subsidiaries which is interest free with maturity date
over one year. The contractual undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities equal their carrying amounts
as shown on the statements of financial position as the

impact of discounting is not significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing financial
liabilities, and the financial assets are bank balances
held with financial institutions. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of

changes in market interest rate.

39.

MR ERER &)

(b)

(c)

RBESRER
AEBEAENKEEERAEART ZH
TER  BRESABZEHRER
EEEFURNARREFE @ i
SiBE THREREKY @ BIZELE
RAEFGHE -  ARBEZBEAE
HERERSHESERNETERR
s ZIEN - EREER R HREF
BEINBRZBEZSRERRA
T EUHEHE L R IEAEE TR
NENEREHRERARSESERK -

REERREKR - rEcmaBEzE
HBEA—FR  MERMTE26 & 29#
B2 ENEHTE A R AR 2 H b
RERETRRER(FIEB AR
—F LA E) BRI o (RRAREIR Z A&
TEX WeRMABRZEHIEIRIE
S REBSFRERIBHRRERANR
ZEREE -

FI=E B

ARBELEBEAT L LALLM
MAEANMEHRERE 2 BITR
B AEEZIMARKLE
BB AT IRF|REF) o

i/nuij(
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

144 | ANN

Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in foreign
currency exchange rates relates primarily to certain
inter-company balances in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity to which the
balances relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is
primarily Hong Kong Dollar.

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a 3%
weakening/strengthen of the Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi would have decrease/increase loss before
income tax by HK$15,773,000. At 31 December 2010,
the currency risk to the Group is minimal. This sensitivity
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular

interest rates, remain constant.

Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity instruments classified as trading securities.

All of these investments are listed.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy and sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that
of the Index and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in
terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the

limits set by the Group.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Price risk (Continued)

(f)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of reporting period. If equity price had been 5% higher,
the loss for the year ended 31 December 2011 would
have been decreased by HK$8,000 (2010:
HK$1,474,000). Had the relevant equity price been 5%
lower, there would be an equal and opposite impact on

the loss.

Fair value of financial instruments

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure for financial instruments
that are carried at fair value by level of the following fair
value measurement hierarchy:

Level1 — Quoted price (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level2 — Inputs other than quoted price included
within Level 1 that are observable for
the assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are

not based on observable market data.

BRREER %)
(e) MEBMREME (%)

(f)

DA BURRE 547 To 42 i BR 3R HA R 2 AR
RERRKRET - MRAER LA
5% AIBIEZE —_T——F+_H
=+—HILFE 2B 1R 4 8,000
(= F — T F :1,474,000%
70) o A BB T8 5% - RI%
BIEEACRHUERERTE -

EMTAEZAFEE
BAEMBHREENE7RRERRF
BER ST AREARR T
ZRAFEEFERRMOA

F1H — HRBEXRABERE
B 52 B CRIEH
B) o

Fok — HEENABMERE
SHEEARER 2 EHR
BA(TEEE—EM
BEZRE) -

FI/ — UHEREABEZD
LREBEMSHZEE
HEBEERBA -

CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED sEgRHEzraRAR | 145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\\/T\

B IR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE—_FT——F+_A=+—HIFZE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(f)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group’s financial
assets held for trading as disclosed in note 23 are
measured at fair value, which is categorised as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and measured
fair value based on Level 1 fair value measurement
hierarchy, except for suspended investment which is
measured based on Level 3 fair value measurement

hierarch.

During the year, suspended investment of
HK$5,332,000 (2010: Nil) was transferred from Level 1
to Level 3, and with no purchases or sales of this
investment during the year. A fair value loss of
HK$3,555,000 regarding to the transferred investment
is recognised in profit or loss during the year. There
were no transfers between instruments in Level 2 and

Level 3 during both years.
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40. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 40. cRIEERAE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and rEEEMEERBERZZE——FR=
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2011 and 2010 may T-TFT A=t —HBERZEEEBET
be categorised as follows: DT -
Carrying amounts Fair value
IRMEE AREE
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g-—F -T TF -—g--F -T T4
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHX  TaAm  Fax  TEn

Financial assets TREE
Fair value through profitor loss ~ 32AFEEN B
held for trading PIRR MIFEEE 5,487 29,677 5,487 29,677
Loan and receivables B M EWGRIE
(including cash and (REREeR
bank balances) RITAEER) 420,768 920,681 420,768 920,681
Financial liabilities SRIBE
Financial liabilities measured REHEK AT EZ
at amortised cost SREIBE 519,545 51,889 453,136 51,889

CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED +@Ermazianras | 147



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TFMHHE
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Results 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
¥E —E-—F ZET-TF ZTTHF ZTTN\F —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET FHET FHET FHT
Turnover EER 73,876 85,376 161,840 339,225 247,665
Loss before income tax MFT S RIE R (127,164) (50,987) (11,950)  (356,829) (32,441)
Income tax credits TS % 4,328 — — — —
Loss before non-controlling RET IR E S BB E
interests (122,836)  (50,987)  (11,950)  (356,829)  (32,441)
Non-controlling interests PR =S — — _ _ _
Loss for the year ANEEEE (122,836) (50,987) (11,950)  (356,829) (32,441)
Assets and liabilities 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
BEREE —E-—-% ZT-TF ZTTNF ZTT)\F ZTTtHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FHET TET FHT
Total assets EESE 4,048,378 958,439 692,179 490,817 881,806
Total liabilities &5 (604,235)  (52,028)  (52,686)  (69,341)  (162,989)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R R (753) (753) (753) (753) (753)
Attributable to owners of AARHEE AEL
the Company 3,443,390 905,658 638,740 420,723 718,064
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